
 

 
Agenda 

 

Joint Meeting of  
Board of Directors & Committees 
 
Friday | December 3, 2021 
8:00 a.m. | Breakfast 
8:30 a.m. | Business Meeting 
Banquet Rooms | Van Andel Arena® 
130 West Fulton | Grand Rapids | MI 
 
1. Call to Order and Chairman’s Comments       Rick Winn 
 
2. Minutes of November 5, 2021             Action 
 
3. Charlie Secchia Farewell Tribute     
 
4. Bob White Retirement Recognition 
 
5. Committee Reports 
  
 A. Operations Committee 
  i. Experience Grand Rapids Report       Information 
  
 B. Finance Committee  
  i.  ASM Special Purpose Financial Statements as of and for the Years Ended   Action 
   June 30, 2021 and 2020 – Rehmann Robson 
  ii.  Communication from Independent Auditors Concerning ASM Special   Information 
   Purpose Financial Statements 
  iii.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Information for the Years    Action 
   Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 – Rehmann Robson 
  iv.  Single Audit Act Compliance for Year Ended June 30, 2021    Action 
  v.  Audit Wrap-up Letter for the Year Ended June 30, 2021     Information 
  vi.  Consolidated Financial Report, for the Year Ended June 30, 2021   Information 
    Recap - Budget to Actual 
  vii.  Acceptance of October 2021 Consolidated Financial Statements   Action 
  viii.  ASM Global Financial Statements for Period Ending 10/31/21 -    Information 
   DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®  
 
 C. Liaison Committee Update        Diane Jones  
 
 D. CIG Update          Joe Jones 
              
6. ASM Global Report and Facilities Calendars       Rich MacKeigan 
 
7. Public Comment 
 
8. Adjournment  

1 of 134



MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY  

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

300 MONROE AVENUE, NW | GRAND RAPIDS, MI 

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2021 

 

 

Attendance: 

  

Members Present:  Richard Winn, Chairperson 

  Mandy Bolter 

   Birgit Klohs 

   Floyd Wilson, Jr.  

 

Members Absent: Rosalynn Bliss 

   Lew Chamberlin  

   Charlie Secchia  

 

Staff/Others:  Thomas Coomes  CitiBank 

  Eric DeLong   City of Grand Rapids 

  Scott Gorsline   DP Fox 

  Tim Gortsema   Grand Rapids Griffins 

  Jen Henkel   ASM Global 

  Diane Jones   Kent County 

  Chris Machuta   ASM Global 

  Rich MacKeigan  ASM Global 

  Mary Manier   Experience Grand Rapids 

  Cheri McConomy  McConomy Properties, LLC 

  Doug Small   Experience Grand Rapids 

  Eddie Tadlock   ASM Global 

  Brad Thomas   Progressive AE 

  John Van Houten  Progressive AE 

  Al Vanderberg   Kent County 

  Susan Waddell   CAA 

  Mark Washington  City of Grand Rapids 

  Robert White   CAA 

  Tiffany Williams  ASM Global 

  Jessica Wood   Dickinson Wright   

 

1. Call to Order  

 

Chairperson, Richard Winn, called the meeting to order at 8:35 a.m.  Staff recorded the meeting minutes.  

 

2. Minutes of Prior Meetings 

 

Motion by Ms. Klohs, support by Mr. Wilson, to approve the October 1, 2021, Board Minutes.  Motion 

carried. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 of 134



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
November 5, 2021 – 2 

 

 

3. Committee Reports 

 

A. Operations Committee 

 

Mary Manier reported that October was extremely busy for Experience Grand Rapids sale staff.  Meeting 

planners are forging ahead for 2022 and beyond.  The sales team attended meeting planner and client 

events in Lansing, Detroit, Indianapolis, IN, and Washington, DC.  Nine meeting planner groups toured 

Grand Rapids for site visits.  The services team hosted three groups to have pre-planning meetings. 

 

B. Finance Committee 

 

i. Consolidated Financial Statement for Period Ending September 30, 2021 

 

Motion by Ms. Klohs, support by Mr. Wilson, to accept the consolidated financial statement for the period 

ending September 30, 2021.  Motion carried. 

 

ii. ASM Global Financial Statements for Period Ending September 30, 2021– 

DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena® 

    

The financial statements were included as information items.   

 

4. Independent Contractor Agreement with McConomy Properties, LLC 

 

Motion by Ms. Klohs, support by Mr. Wilson, to approve the Independent Contractor Agreement with 

McConomy Properties, LLC.  Motion carried. 

 

5. Auto Parking System Periodic Reporting 

 

The quarterly report regarding the City/County utilization of discounted DeVos Place® monthly parking 

passes was included as an information item. 

 

6. ASM Global Report and Facilities Calendars 

 

Mr. MacKeigan reported that staff travel is starting back up.  Surveys were sent to all Board and 

Committee members regarding opportunities to meet, as well as roles on the respective committees.  A 

Finance Committee Chair is needed, and Attorney Wendt has affirmed that the committee chair does not 

need to be a CAA Board member.  Mr. MacKeigan will be looking at full-time labor wage issues, as there 

have been freezes, no incentive pay, no bonuses, and no salary increases in the past couple of years.  

There were some industries that were not negatively impacted by Covid, and were positively impacted, 

and so the labor market is very competitive.      

 

7. Public Comment 

 

Diane Jones, Kent County Commissioner and CAA Liaison Committee Chair, reported that the Liaison 

Committee met in September.  The goal is to increase communication between the CAA and the County 

Board and City Commission.  The Liaison Committee will meet again after the joint meeting in 

December.  There are three members from the City and three members from the County, and the chair 

position will alternate between the County and the City.   

 

 

 

 

3 of 134



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
November 5, 2021 – 3 

 

 

8. Board Member Comments 

 

Mr. Wilson expressed his appreciation to Mary Manier and the Experience Grand Rapids staff in bringing 

groups back to Grand Rapids.   

 

9. Adjournment 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:55 a.m.   

 

 

 

     ______________________________________   

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary 

4 of 134



DeVos Place, as Managed by SMG, a 

Division of ASM Global

Years Ended        

June 30, 2021 and 

2020

Special‐Purpose 

Financial 

Statements

5 of 134



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

Table of Contents

Page

Independent Auditors’ Report 1

Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Amount Due Operator Arising

from Activities Managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global 3

Statements of Operating Revenues, Operating Expenses, and Incentive Management 

Fee Arising from Activities Managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global 4

Statements of Changes in Amount Due Operator Arising from 

Activities Managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global 5

Statements of Operating Cash Flows Arising from Activities

Managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global 6

Notes to Special‐Purpose Financial Statements 7

6 of 134



 

     

Rehmann is an independent member of Nexia International. 

 

  
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

September 28, 2021

DeVos Place, as Managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global

Grand Rapids, Michigan

Report on the Financial Statements

Management's Responsibility for the Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

Independent Auditors' Responsibility

We have audited the accompanying special‐purpose financial statements of DeVos Place, as Managed

by SMG, a Division of ASM Global (“SMG‐DeVos Place”), which comprise the special‐purpose

statements of assets, liabilities, and amount due Operator arising from activities managed by SMG as of

June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the special‐purpose statements of operating revenues, operating

expenses, and incentive management fee arising from activities managed by SMG; special‐purpose

statements of changes in amount due Operator arising from activities managed by SMG; and special‐

purpose statements of operating cash flows arising from activities managed by SMG for the years then

ended, and the related notes to the special‐purpose financial statements (collectively, the "Special‐

Purpose Financial Statements").

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these special‐purpose financial

statements in accordance with the basis of presentation referred to in Note 1 to the special‐purpose

financial statements; this includes determining that the basis of presentation is an acceptable basis for

the preparation of the special‐purpose financial statements in the circumstances. Management is also

responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of special‐purpose financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these special‐purpose financial statements based on our

audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the special‐purpose financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

1

7 of 134



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.

Opinion

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the special‐purpose financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the special‐purpose financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers

internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the special‐purpose

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the special‐purpose financial statements.

In our opinion, the special‐purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material

respects, the assets, liabilities, and amount due Operator of SMG‐DeVos Place as of June 30, 2021 and

2020, and its operating revenues, operating expenses, changes in amount due Operator, and operating

cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the basis of presentation described in Note 1 to

the special‐purpose financial statements. 

Basis of Presentation

Our report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of SMG‐DeVos Place and

officials of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena Authority and is not intended to be and

should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We draw attention to Note 1 to the special‐purpose financial statements, which describes the basis of

accounting. The special‐purpose financial statements are prepared pursuant to the Management

Agreement, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America, and are not intended to be a complete presentation of SMG‐DeVos Place's

financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this

matter.

Restriction on Use

2

8 of 134



Special‐Purpose Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Amount
Due Operator Arising from Activities Managed by SMG

June 30, 

2021 2020

Assets (all current)

Cash and cash equivalents:

Operating 815,286$           668,589$          

Ticket sales escrow 1,196,755          912,188

Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $43,146 and $76,253

in 2021 and 2020, respectively 219,683              300,440

Prepaid expenses 218,451              163,344

Total assets (all current) 2,450,175$        2,044,561$       

Liabilities (all current)

Accounts payable 412,144$           68,054$             

Accrued expenses 212,973              192,314

Unearned revenue:

Advance ticket sales 1,196,755          912,188

Advance deposits 587,790              601,734

Other unearned revenue 117,738              115,872

Total liabilities (all current) 2,527,400          1,890,162         

Amount due Operator (deficit) (77,225)               154,399             

Total liabilities and amount due Operator 2,450,175$        2,044,561$       

See notes to special‐purpose financial statements.

DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

3

9 of 134



Special‐Purpose Statements of Operating Revenues, Operating Expenses,
and Incentive Management Fee Arising from Activities Managed by SMG

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020

Operating revenues

Events 165,237$           2,468,476$       

Ancillary revenues, net:

Food and beverage 17,946                767,824             

Decorating 10,746                254,587             

Electrical 1,360                  307,206             

Equipment rental 17,047                397,763             

Other net of related expense of $22,663 and $376,637,

in 2021 and 2020, respectively (21,988)               136,703             

25,111                1,864,083         

Other operating revenues (includes interest income of $8,433 

and $17,084 in 2021 and 2020, respectively) 98,212                634,163             

Total operating revenues 288,560              4,966,722         

Operating expenses

Personnel 1,847,767          2,842,694         

Utilities 1,028,979          1,279,043         

Supplies and expenses 55,122                228,412             

Repairs and maintenance 467,730              652,684             

General and administrative 809,301              1,517,010         

Total operating expenses 4,208,899          6,519,843         

Operating revenues under operating expenses

before incentive management fee (3,920,339)         (1,553,121)        

Incentive management fee ‐                           ‐                          

Operating revenues under operating expenses
and incentive management fee (3,920,339)$       (1,553,121)$      

See notes to special‐purpose financial statements.

DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

4

10 of 134



Special‐Purpose Statements of Changes in Amount Due
Operator Arising from Activities Managed by SMG

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020

Amount due Operator, beginning of year 154,399$           814,554$          

Excess of operating revenues under operating 

expenses and incentive management fee (3,920,339)         (1,553,121)        

Contributions received from Operator 3,688,715          1,396,548         

Amounts paid to Operator ‐                           (503,582)           

Amount due Operator (deficit), end of year (77,225)$            154,399$          

See notes to special‐purpose financial statements.

DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

5

11 of 134



Special‐Purpose Statements of Operating Cash Flows
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating revenues under operating expenses and 

incentive management fees (3,920,339)$       (1,553,121)$      

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 80,757                1,010,040         

Prepaid expenses (55,107)               3,594                 

Accounts payable 344,090              (560,785)           

Accrued expenses 20,659                (397,920)           

Advance deposits (13,944)               173,928             

Other unearned revenue 1,866                  34,783               

Net cash used in operating activities (3,542,018)         (1,289,481)        

Cash flows from financing activities

Contributions received from Operator 3,688,715          1,396,548         

Amounts paid to Operator ‐                           (503,582)           

Net cash provided by financing activities 3,688,715          892,966             

Net change in operating cash 146,697              (396,515)           

Operating cash, beginning of year 668,589              1,065,104         

Operating cash, end of year 815,286$           668,589$          

See notes to special‐purpose financial statements.

DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

6

12 of 134



NOTES TO SPECIAL‐PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

13 of 134



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

Notes to Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

1.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Assets and Liabilities

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables

The Operator has entered into a Management Agreement with SMG, a division of ASM Global, to manage

the operations of DeVos Place. The activities of DeVos Place that are managed by SMG are referred to

herein as   SMG‐DeVos Place.

SMG‐DeVos Place considers cash and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less

to be cash equivalents for the special‐purpose statements of cash flows. Amounts in the ticket sales escrow

account represent ticket sales proceeds for events that have not yet occurred. For the protection of the

ticket holders, SMG and the Operator, such amounts are required to be held in a separate account to

provide resources for payments to performers and promoters and for payment of operating expenses.

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated

portion that is expected to be uncollectible.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DeVos Place provides space for conventions, trade shows, concerts, meetings, banquets, and other

performances. DeVos Place is operated by the Grand Rapids‐ Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the

"  Operator").

The accompanying special‐purpose financial statements were prepared to present the assets, liabilities,

amount due Operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating cash flows of DeVos Place

arising from the management activities of SMG and are not intended to be a complete presentation of

DeVos Place's financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. Such special‐purpose financial

statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and include transactions managed by

SMG in accordance with the Management Agreement, measured in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, the special‐purpose financial statements

do not include property and equipment, noncontractual repair expenses, and related‐fund equity

associated with DeVos Place or certain other activities of the Operator related to DeVos Place that are not

part of the activities managed by SMG. Payroll and related expenses are for employees hired by SMG to

manage DeVos Place under the Management Agreement.

The Operator, from time to time, provides funding to SMG‐DeVos Place to pay the obligations of DeVos

Place when due. The Operator is contractually obligated to fund all liabilities and expenses of DeVos Place.

8

14 of 134



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

Notes to Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

Prepaid Expenses

Unearned Revenues

Event Revenues

Ancillary Revenues

Other Operating Revenues

Noncontractual Repairs

Use of Estimates

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as

prepaid items.

SMG‐DeVos Place incurs a liability for all cash received from ticket sales in advance of an event; a

corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account. Revenues are not recognized until the related

event occurs. Unearned revenue is comprised primarily of advanced billings, which are recognized as

revenues on a straight‐line basis over the term of the related contracts. Also included are ticket rebates

received from the ticket agent prior to an event, which are not recognized as revenue until the event

occurs.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those

estimates.

SMG‐DeVos Place records event revenue upon the completion of the event. Accordingly, amounts received

for advance ticket sales or deposits by promoters are recorded as liabilities until that time. Costs incurred

prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged to expense upon completion of the event.

Event revenues are reported net of related event expenses of $592,123 and $3,164,254 for the years

ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

All concession and catering, decorating, electrical, and audiovisual revenues are recognized when earned.

Ancillary revenues are a contractually determined percentage of gross receipts collected by the vendor for

each event.

Other operating revenues are comprised of interest income, nonevent equipment rental income, ticket

rebates, and other miscellaneous items.

At times, SMG‐DeVos Place incurs costs funded by the Operator's capital projects budget, which is separate

and distinct from the operating funds provided by the Operator to DeVos Place. The Operator ultimately

decides which expenses will be capitalized or expensed. These costs are excluded from operating expenses

in the accompanying special‐purpose statements of operating revenues and operating expenses.

9

15 of 134



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

Notes to Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

2.

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020

Excess of operating revenues over (under) operating

expenses, as defined, SMG‐Van Andel Arena (1,766,546)$       1,705,698$       

Excess of operating revenues under operating

expenses, as defined, SMG‐DeVos Place (3,920,339)         (1,553,121)        

Total (5,686,885)$       152,577$          

Incentive benchmark 1,050,000$        1,050,000$       

Benchmark met? No No

Percentage of 

Incentive Fee 

Payable to SMG

$850,000 or more and less than $950,000 50%

$950,000 or more and less than $1,050,000 75%

$1,050,000 or more 100%

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND FEES

The incentive fee is based on the combined results of operations of SMG‐DeVos Place and SMG‐Van Andel

Arena compared to a combined operating revenue benchmark of $9,700,000, which shall be adjusted

upward annually during the remainder of the term by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index,

as defined in the Agreement. To qualify for the incentive fee, combined operating revenues of SMG‐Van

Andel Arena and SMG‐DeVos Place must exceed combined operating expenses before incentive

management fee by an established benchmark, as follows:

In the event the combined operations of SMG‐Van Andel Arena and SMG‐DeVos Place exceed the

established operating revenue benchmark, and the operating revenues exceed operating expenses by the

benchmark discussed above, the incentive fee is determined based on the below calculation. The amount

of the incentive fee paid based on the calculation below is determined by the amount by which combined

operating revenues exceed combined operating expense in accordance with the threshold levels set forth

below:

Amount by Which Operating Revenues Exceed 

Operating Expenses for the Management 

Agreement

SMG and the Operator signed a Management Agreement (the  "Agreement") that has an effective date of

July 1, 2018, expiring on June 30, 2028, with one ten‐year renewal period extending through June 30, 2038.

The Agreement provides for both an annual base and incentive management fee. The annual base

management fee was set at $176,440 for the first year of the agreement and is adjusted upward annually

by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (not to exceed 3% in any one year). A decrease in

the Consumer Price Index will not have an effect on the management fee. 

10

16 of 134



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

Notes to Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

SMG‐DeVos Place base management fee, included in

general and administrative expense 180,339$           179,263$          

Incentive fee  ‐                          ‐                         

Total management fees ‐ SMG‐DeVos Place 180,339$           179,263$          

3. 

4.

Year Ended 

June 30, 2020

Year Ended 

June 30, 2021

In addition to the operations of SMG‐DeVos Place, SMG personnel also manage the operations of SMG‐Van

Andel Arena. The two facilities share certain expenses, such as payroll, employee fringe benefits, and

insurance, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities. The two facilities also

share a box office, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities for ticket sales.

Accounts receivable includes $25,129 and $150,820 due from SMG‐Van Andel Arena as of June 30, 2021

and 2020, respectively. Accounts payable includes $213,070 and $876 due to SMG‐Van Andel Arena as of

June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, SMG‐DeVos Place made payments of $0 and $48,341,

respectively, to SMG‐Food and Beverage LLC, a related party to SMG, for catering services. 

Employees at SMG‐DeVos Place may elect to participate in the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan, a 401(k)

defined contribution plan covering SMG employees who have completed one year of employment and

1,000 hours of service. SMG‐DeVos Place makes matching contributions equal to 67% of each participants

contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the employee's eligible compensation. Discretionary contributions

may also be made on a monthly basis for active participants. SMG‐DeVos Place made $0 and $30,857 in

matching contributions for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

RETIREMENT PLAN

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The incentive fee shall be allocated between facilities by the percentage of each facility's contribution to

the excess revenue above benchmark. The base fee is contingent upon the Operator maintaining the SMG‐

Van Andel Arena concessions agreement with SMG  Food and Beverage LLC. If that agreement were to be

terminated, the base management fee would increase $50,000 for each managed facility, adjusted

annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index from the base year.

The calculation is only performed when combined operating revenues of SMG‐Van Andel Arena and SMG‐

DeVos Place exceed combined operating expenses by the established benchmark. A schedule of the base

fee for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, is as follows:

11

17 of 134



DEVOS PLACE, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

Notes to Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

5.

6.

7. CORONAVIRUS (COVID‐19)

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus outbreak (COVID‐19) to be a

global pandemic. The pandemic has resulted in operational challenges for SMG‐Devos Place as it

determines the appropriate methods to provide services to its patrons. At this time, management does not

believe that any ongoing negative financial impact related to the pandemic will be materially detrimental

to SMG‐Devos Place.

SMG‐DeVos Place is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of

assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the years ended June 30,

2021 and 2020, SMG‐DeVos Place carried commercial insurance to cover all risks of losses. SMG‐DeVos

Place has had no settled claims resulting from these risks that exceeded their commercial coverage in the

past three years.

    

SMG‐DeVos Place is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the

normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a

material effect on the financial position of the entity. 

CONTINGENCIES

RISK MANAGEMENT

12

18 of 134



Van Andel Arena, as Managed by SMG, a 

Division of ASM Global

Years Ended        

June 30, 2021 and 

2020

Special‐Purpose 

Financial 

Statements

19 of 134



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

Table of Contents

Page

Independent Auditors’ Report 1

Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Amount Due Operator Arising

from Activities Managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global 3

Statements of Operating Revenues, Operating Expenses, and Incentive

Management Fee Arising from Activities Managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global 4

Statements of Changes in Amount Due Operator Arising from 

Activities Managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global 5

Statements of Operating Cash Flows Arising from Activities

Managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global 6

Notes to Special‐Purpose Financial Statements 7

20 of 134



 

     

Rehmann is an independent member of Nexia International. 

 

  
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

September 28, 2021

Van Andel Arena, as Managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global

Grand Rapids, Michigan

Report on the Financial Statements

Management's Responsibility for the Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

Independent Auditors' Responsibility

We have audited the accompanying special‐purpose financial statements of Van Andel Arena, as

Managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global (“SMG‐Van Andel Arena”), which comprise the special‐

purpose statements of assets, liabilities, and amount due Operator arising from activities managed by

SMG as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the special‐purpose statements of operating revenues,

operating expenses and incentive management fee arising from activities managed by SMG; special‐

purpose statements of changes in amount due Operator arising from activities managed by SMG; and

special‐purpose statements of operating cash flows arising from activities managed by SMG for the

years then ended, and the related notes to the special‐purpose financial statements (collectively, the

"Special‐Purpose Financial Statements").

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these special‐purpose financial

statements in accordance with the basis of presentation referred to in Note 1 to the special‐purpose

financial statements; this includes determining that the basis of presentation is an acceptable basis for

the preparation of the special‐purpose financial statements in the circumstances. Management is also

responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of special‐purpose financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these special‐purpose financial statements based on our

audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the special‐purpose financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

1

21 of 134



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.

Opinion

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the special‐purpose financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the special‐purpose financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers

internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the special‐purpose

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the special‐purpose financial statements.

In our opinion, the special‐purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material

respects, the assets, liabilities, and amount due Operator of SMG‐Van Andel Arena as of June 30, 2021

and 2020, and its operating revenues, operating expenses, changes in amount due Operator, and

operating cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the basis of presentation described in

Note 1 to the special‐purpose financial statements. 

Basis of Presentation

Our report is intended solely for the information and use of the management of SMG‐Van Andel Arena

and officials of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena Authority and is not intended to be

and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We draw attention to Note 1 to the special‐purpose financial statements, which describes the basis of

accounting. The special‐purpose financial statements are prepared pursuant to the Management

Agreement, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America, and are not intended to be a complete presentation of SMG‐Van Andel

Arena's financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Our opinion is not modified with respect

to this matter.

Restriction on Use

2

22 of 134



Special‐Purpose Statements of Assets, Liabilities, and Amount
Due Operator Arising from Activities Managed by SMG

June 30, 

2021 2020

Assets (all current)

Cash and cash equivalents:

Operating 82,627$              ‐$                        

Ticket sales escrow 9,939,351          8,789,366

Accounts receivable 783,043              1,302,885

Prepaid expenses 167,540              96,029

Total assets (all current) 10,972,561$      10,188,280$     

Liabilities (all current)

Accounts payable 246,094$           731,358$          

Accrued expenses 140,562              136,833

Unearned revenue:

Advance ticket sales 9,939,351          8,789,366

Advance deposits 36,925                51,925

Other unearned revenue 971,305              1,383,968

Total liabilities (all current) 11,334,237        11,093,450       

Amount due Operator (deficit) (361,676)            (905,170)           

Total liabilities and amount due Operator 10,972,561$      10,188,280$     

See notes to special‐purpose financial statements.

VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

3

23 of 134



Special‐Purpose Statements of Operating Revenues, Operating
Expenses, and Incentive Management Fee Arising from Activities Managed by SMG

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020

Operating revenues

Events 92,336$              871,463$          

Ancillary revenues, net:

Food and beverage 12,754                1,505,190         

Novelties ‐                           158,109             

Other (net of related expenses of $174,985 and $113,448, 

in 2021 and 2020, respectively) 41,832                396                    

54,586                1,663,695         

Other operating revenues:

Premium seating 293,980              1,607,287         

Advertising income 181,925              641,966             

Other (includes interest income of $49,568 and $78,197

in 2021 and 2020, respectively 106,817              1,048,226         

582,722              3,297,479         

Total operating revenues 729,644              5,832,637         

Operating expenses

Personnel 1,031,446          1,823,717         

Utilities 537,412              742,780             

Supplies and expenses 48,619                211,652             

Repairs and maintenance 167,792              207,290             

General and administrative 710,921              1,141,500         

Total operating expenses 2,496,190          4,126,939         

Operating revenues over (under) operating expenses

before incentive management fee (1,766,546)         1,705,698         

Incentive management fee ‐                           ‐                          

Operating revenues over (under) operating expenses
and incentive management fee (1,766,546)$       1,705,698$       

See notes to special‐purpose financial statements.

VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

4

24 of 134



Special‐Purpose Statements of Changes in Amount Due
Operator Arising from Activities Managed by SMG

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020

Amount due Operator (deficit), beginning of year (905,170)$          66,109$             

Excess of operating revenues over (under)

operating expenses and incentive management fee (1,766,546)         1,705,698         

Contributions received from Operator 2,374,078          1,505,559

Amounts paid to Operator (64,038)               (4,182,536)

Amount due Operator (deficit), end of year (361,676)$          (905,170)$         

See notes to special‐purpose financial statements.

VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

5

25 of 134



Special‐Purpose Statements of Operating Cash Flows
Arising from Activities Managed by SMG

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating revenues over (under) operating expenses (1,766,546)$       1,705,698$       

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 519,842              (501,591)           

Prepaid expenses (71,511)               47,398               

Accounts payable (485,264)            (134,489)           

Accrued expenses 3,729                  (425,253)           

Advance deposits (15,000)               14,500               

Unearned revenue (412,663)            113,883             

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (2,227,413)         820,146             

Cash flows from financing activities

Contributions received from Operator 2,374,078          1,505,559         

Amounts paid to Operator (64,038)               (4,182,536)        

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,310,040          (2,676,977)        

Net change in operating cash 82,627                (1,856,831)        

Operating cash, beginning of year ‐                           1,856,831         

Operating cash, end of year 82,627$              ‐$                        

See notes to special‐purpose financial statements.

VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

6

26 of 134



NOTES TO SPECIAL‐PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7

27 of 134



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

Notes to Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

1.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Assets and Liabilities

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Van Andel Arena (the   "Arena") provides space for family shows, concerts, sporting events, meetings, and

other performances. The Arena is operated by the Grand Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

(the "  Operator").

The Operator, from time to time, provides funding to SMG‐Van Andel Arena to pay the obligations of the

Arena when due. The Operator is contractually obligated to fund all liabilities and expenses of the Arena.

The accompanying special‐purpose financial statements were prepared to present the assets, liabilities,

amount due Operator, operating revenues, operating expenses, and operating cash flows of the Arena

arising from the management activities of SMG and are not intended to be a complete presentation of the

Arena's financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. Such special‐purpose financial statements

have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and include transactions managed by SMG in

accordance with the Management Agreement, measured in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, the special‐purpose financial statements

do not include property and equipment, noncontractual repair expenses, and related‐fund equity

associated with the Arena or certain other activities of the Operator related to the Arena that are not part

of the activities managed by SMG. Payroll and related expenses are for employees hired by SMG to

manage the Arena under the Management Agreement.

The Operator has entered into a Management Agreement with SMG, a Division of ASM Global, to manage

the operations of the Arena. The activities of the Arena that are managed by SMG are referred to herein as

  SMG‐Van Andel Arena.

SMG‐Van Andel Arena considers cash and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or

less to be cash equivalents for the special‐purpose statements of cash flows. Amounts in the ticket sales

escrow account represent ticket sales proceeds for events that have not yet occurred. For the protection of

the ticket holders, SMG and the Operator, such amounts are required to be held in a separate account to

provide resources for payments to performers and promoters and for payment of operating expenses. 

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated

portion that is expected to be uncollectible. No amount is considered uncollectible at June 30, 2021 and

2020, respectively.

8

28 of 134



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

Notes to Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

Prepaid Expenses

Unearned Revenues

Event Revenues

Ancillary Revenues

Other Operating Revenues

Noncontractual Repairs

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those

estimates.

SMG‐Van Andel Arena records event revenue upon the completion of the event. Accordingly, amounts

received for advance ticket sales or deposits by promoters are recorded as liabilities until that time. Costs

incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged to expense upon completion of

the event. Event revenues are reported net of related event expenses of $545,396 and $3,080,034 for the

years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

All concession and catering, decorating, electrical, and audiovisual revenues are recognized when earned.

Ancillary revenues are a contractually determined percentage of gross receipts collected by the vendor for

each event.

Other operating revenues include revenues associated with luxury seating, advertising, ticket rebates,

interest income, and other miscellaneous items.

From time to time, SMG‐Van Andel Arena incurs costs funded by the Operator's capital projects budget,

which is separate and distinct from the operating funds provided by the Operator to the Arena. The

Operator ultimately decides which expenses will be capitalized or expensed. These costs are excluded from

operating expenses in the accompanying special‐purpose statements.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as

prepaid expenses.

SMG‐Van Andel Arena incurs a liability for all cash received from ticket sales in advance of an event; a

corresponding amount is held in a separate escrow account. Revenues are not recognized until the related

event occurs. Unearned revenue is comprised primarily of advanced billings and collections for luxury

boxes and advertising contracts, which are recognized as revenues on a straight‐line basis over the term of

the related contracts. Also included are ticket rebates received from the ticket agent prior to an event,

which are not recognized as revenue until the event occurs.

9

29 of 134



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

Notes to Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

2.

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020

Excess of operating revenues over (under) operating

expenses, as defined, SMG‐Van Andel Arena (1,766,546)$       1,705,698$       

Excess of operating revenues under operating

expenses, as defined, SMG‐DeVos Place (3,920,339)         (1,553,121)        

Total (5,686,885)$       152,577$          

Incentive benchmark 1,050,000$        1,050,000$       

Benchmark met? No No

MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT AND FEES

The incentive fee is based on the combined results of operations of SMG‐DeVos Place and SMG‐Van Andel

Arena compared to a combined operating revenue benchmark of $9,700,000, which shall be adjusted

upward annually during the remainder of the term by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index,

as defined in the Agreement. The maximum incentive to be paid in any fiscal year is equal to 100% of the

base management fee. To qualify for the incentive fee, combined operating revenues of SMG‐Van Andel

Arena and SMG‐DeVos Place must exceed combined operating expenses before incentive management fee

by an established benchmark, as follows:

SMG and the Operator signed a Management Agreement (the  "Agreement") that has an effective date of

July 1, 2018, expiring on June 30, 2028, with one ten‐year renewal period extending through June 30, 2038.

The Agreement provides for both an annual base and incentive management fee. The annual base

management fee was set at $176,440 for the first year of the agreement and is adjusted upward annually

by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (not to exceed 3% in any one year). A decrease in

the Consumer Price Index will not have an effect on the management fee.

10

30 of 134



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

Notes to Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

Percentage of 

Incentive Fee 

Payable to SMG

$850,000 or more and less than $950,000 50%

$950,000 or more and less than $1,050,000 75%

$1,050,000 or more 100%

SMG‐Van Andel base management fee, included in 

general and administrative expense 180,339$           179,263$          

Incentive fee  ‐                          ‐                         

Total management fees ‐ SMG‐Van Andel Arena 180,339$           179,263$          

3. 

The calculation is only performed when combined operating revenues of SMG‐Van Andel Arena and SMG‐

DeVos Place exceed combined operating expenses by the established benchmark. A schedule of the base

fee for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively, is as follows:

In the event the combined operations of SMG‐Van Andel Arena and SMG‐DeVos Place exceed the

established operating revenue benchmark, and the operating revenues exceed operating expenses by the

benchmark discussed above, the incentive fee is determined based on the below calculation. The amount

of the incentive fee paid based on the calculation below is determined by the amount by which combined

operating revenues exceed combined operating expense in accordance with the threshold levels set forth

below:

Amount by Which Operating Revenues Exceed 

Operating Expenses for the Management 

Agreement

Employees at SMG‐Van Andel Arena may elect to participate in the SMG Retirement and Savings Plan, a

401(k) defined contribution plan covering SMG employees who have completed one year of employment

and 1,000 hours of service. SMG‐Van Andel Arena makes matching contributions equal to 67% of each

participants contribution up to a maximum of 5% of the employee's eligible compensation. Discretionary

contributions may also be made on a monthly basis for active participants. SMG‐Van Andel Arena made $0

and $19,753 in matching contributions for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

RETIREMENT PLAN

The incentive fee shall be allocated between facilities by the percentage of each facility's contribution to

the excess revenue above benchmark. The base fee is contingent upon the Operator maintaining the SMG‐

Van Andel Arena concessions agreement with SMG  Food and Beverage LLC. If that agreement were to be

terminated, the base management fee would increase $50,000 for each managed facility, adjusted

annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index from the base year.

Year Ended 

June 30, 2020

Year Ended 

June 30, 2021

11

31 of 134



VAN ANDEL ARENA, AS MANAGED BY SMG, A DIVISION OF ASM GLOBAL

Notes to Special‐Purpose Financial Statements

4.

5.

6.

7.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

SMG‐Van Andel Arena is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in

the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not

have a material effect on the financial position of the entity. 

CONTINGENCIES

On July 1, 2006, the Operator entered into a concessions agreement for the Arena with SMG‐Food and

Beverage LLC, a related party to SMG. Accounts receivable includes $10 and $10 from SMG‐Food and

Beverage LLC, as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Accounts payable includes $0 as of June 30, 2021

and 2020, respectively. During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, SMG‐Van Andel received

payments of $0 and $2,530,570, respectively, from SMG‐Food and Beverage LLC which represents

commission on sales. During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, SMG‐Van Andel made payments of

$6,319 and $162,516, respectively, to SMG‐Food and Beverage LLC. 

SMG‐Van Andel Arena is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and

destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the years

ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, SMG‐Van Andel Arena carried commercial insurance to cover all risks of

losses. SMG‐Van Andel Arena has had no settled claims resulting from these risks that exceeded their

commercial coverage in the past four years.

In addition to the operations of SMG‐Van Andel Arena, SMG personnel also manage the operations of SMG‐

DeVos Place. The two facilities share certain expenses, such as payroll, employee fringe benefits, and

insurance, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities. The two facilities also

share a box office, resulting in frequent billings and payments between the two facilities for ticket sales.

Accounts receivable includes $213,070 and $876 due from SMG‐DeVos Place as of June 30, 2021 and

2020, respectively. Accounts payable includes $25,129 and $150,820 payable to SMG‐DeVos Place as of

June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

    

RISK MANAGEMENT

CORONAVIRUS (COVID‐19)

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus outbreak (COVID‐19) to be a

global pandemic. The pandemic has resulted in operational challenges for SMG‐Van Andel Arena as it

determines the appropriate methods to provide services to its patrons. At this time, management does not

believe that any ongoing negative financial impact related to the pandemic will be materially detrimental

to SMG‐Van Andel Arena.

12

32 of 134



�

�����
���������	������
����
�����������������������������������

� �

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated August 21, 2021, our responsibility, as described by

professional standards, is to form and express opinions about whether the special‐purpose financial

statements ("financial statements") that have been prepared by management with your oversight are fairly

presented, in all material respects, in conformity with the Management Agreement with the Grand Rapids‐

Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "Authority"). Our audit of the financial statements does not

relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain

reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial

reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting.

Accordingly, as part of our audits, we considered the internal control of SMG‐DeVos Place and SMG‐Van Andel

Arena solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance

concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 

judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not

required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.

We performed the audits according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our

engagement letter and in our meeting about planning matters on August 16, 2021.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

September 28, 2021

To Management of

DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena, 

as Managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global

Grand Rapids, Michigan 

We have audited the special‐purpose financial statements of DeVos Place ("SMG‐DeVos Place") and Van

Andel Arena ("SMG‐Van Andel Arena"), as managed by SMG, a Division of ASM Global, as of and for the

years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and have issued our reports thereon dated September 28, 2021.

Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audits.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

33 of 134



Page 2

▪

▪

▪

Significant Difficulties Encountered During the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the

audits.

The allocation of shared costs between SMG‐DeVos Place and SMG‐Van Andel Arena is based on related

time expended, services performed or other applicable activities and data. 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates and determined that they are

reasonable in relation to the special‐purpose financial statements. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based

on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience

about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are

particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility

that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the accrued compensated absences is based on current hourly rates and

policies regarding payment of vacation banks. 

Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible receivable balances is based on past experience

and future expectation for collection of various account balances.

Qualitative Aspects of Significant Accounting Practices

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the

significant accounting policies adopted by SMG‐DeVos Place and SMG‐Van Andel Arena is included in Note 1 to 

the financial statements.

There have been no initial selections of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting policies or

their application during the year.

No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you

about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant

accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or

consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm has complied with all relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence.

34 of 134



Page 3

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely

misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them

to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the

effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account

balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each applicable opinion unit. In addition,

professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements that were

brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. No material audit adjustments

were noted as part of audit procedures. 

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,

whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,

which could be significant to the special‐purpose financial statements or the auditors’ report. No such

disagreements arose during the course of the audits.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in Attachment A to

this letter.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting

matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other

accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

Very truly yours,

This information is intended solely for the use of the governing body and management of SMG‐DeVos Place,

SMG‐Van Andel Arena, and the Grand Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena Authority and is not intended to

be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

In the normal course of our professional association with SMG‐DeVos Place and SMG‐Van Andel Arena, we

generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing

standards, operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that

may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our

retention as the auditors.

35 of 134



SMG‐DEVOS PLACE & SMG‐VAN ANDEL ARENA

Attachment A – Management Representations

The following pages contain the written representations that we requested from management.

For the June 30, 2021 Audit

A1

36 of 134



37 of 134



38 of 134



39 of 134



40 of 134



Grand Rapids ‐ Kent County 

Convention/Arena Authority

Years Ended June 30, 

2021 and 2020

Financial 

Statements

41 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Table of Contents

Page

Independent Auditors’ Report 1

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  5

Basic Financial Statements

Statements of Net Position 12

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 13

Statements of Cash Flows 14

Notes to Financial Statements 17

Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position ‐ 

Budget and Actual ‐ For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 28

42 of 134



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

November 26, 2021

Members of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority Board

Grand Rapids, Michigan

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority (the “Authority”), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,

and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic

financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Independent Auditors' Responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes

the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

1

43 of 134



In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

respective financial position of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena Authority as of June 30,

2021 and 2020, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.

Opinion

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s

Discussion and Analysis, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial

statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting

for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance

with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries

of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for

consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other

knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion

or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with

sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Required Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that

collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Fund Net Position ‐ Budget and Actual is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is

not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the

auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not

express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Information

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

2

44 of 134



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 26,

2021 on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of

its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other

matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over

financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the

internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's internal

control over financial reporting and compliance.

3

45 of 134



This page intentionally left blank.

4

46 of 134



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

5

47 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Financial Highlights

∙ Total net position 14,932,246$     

∙ Change in total net position (7,646,241)        

∙ Capital assets, net 1,135,326         

∙ Change in net capital assets 185,519            

Overview of the Financial Statements

▪

▪

▪

▪

The schedule of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position ‐ budget and actual is presented as

supplementary information and includes information on how the Authority performed in relation to the Board‐

adopted budget. 

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents

certain required supplementary information. Required supplementary information includes this management's

discussion and analysis. 

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. We

offer readers this narrative overview and analysis for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. We encourage

readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that is furnished in

the financial statements and notes to the financial statements.

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic financial statements. The

basic financial statements are comprised of the statement of net position, the statement of revenues, expenses and

changes in fund net position, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the financial statements.

The Authority's financial statements consist of a single enterprise fund (a proprietary fund type), as the Authority

intends to recover all or a significant portion of its costs through user fees and charges (known as "business‐type

activities").

The statements of net position present information on all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities, with the

difference between these items reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may

serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position present information showing how the

Authority’s net position changed during each fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the

underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

The statements of cash flows present information showing in greater detail how the Authority received and

disbursed cash.

The notes to financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the

data provided in the basic financial statements.

6

48 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Statements of Net Position

June 30, 

2021 2020 2019

Assets

Current and other assets 33,600,742$      40,624,146$      44,022,854$     

Capital assets, net 1,135,326          949,807             1,322,762         

34,736,068        41,573,953        45,345,616       

Liabilities

Other liabilities 19,803,822        18,995,466        19,753,870       

Net position

Investment in capital assets 1,135,326          949,807             1,322,762         

Unrestricted 13,796,920        21,628,680        24,268,984       

Total net position 14,932,246$      22,578,487$      25,591,746$     

The Authority's assets exceeded its liabilities by $14,932,246 and $22,578,487 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and

2020, respectively. A summary of the Authority's net position for the current fiscal year and two years prior is

presented below. 

Financial Analysis

A portion of the Authority’s net position (7.6% and 4.2% in 2021 and 2020, respectively), reflects its investment in

capital assets (e.g. buildings, structures and equipment). The Authority uses these capital assets to provide services

to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The remaining portion, unrestricted net

position represents resources that may be used at the Authority’s discretion, but often have limitations based on

policy action. 

7

49 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Statements of Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020 2019

Operating revenues 1,583,320$        11,985,625$      17,883,544$     

Operating expenses 12,115,764        15,866,109        17,961,728       

Operating loss (10,532,444)       (3,880,484)         (78,184)             

Nonoperating revenues 3,759,694          1,307,374          1,027,656         

Income (loss) before transfers out (6,772,750)         (2,573,110)         949,472            

Transfer of constructed assets (873,491)            (440,149)            (846,258)           

Change in net position (7,646,241)         (3,013,259)         103,214            

Net position, beginning of year 22,578,487        25,591,746        25,488,532       

Net position, end of year 14,932,246$      22,578,487$      25,591,746$     

The following condensed financial information reflects how the Authority’s net position changed during the current

fiscal year and the two years prior:

Operating Revenues

Operating revenues of the Authority are generated by the Authority's DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena.

Management of each of these facilities is provided by a third party company, SMG, a Division of ASM Global, with

whom the Authority has a management agreement. Operating revenues include event revenues as well as ancillary

revenues related to luxury seating, advertising and commissions on vendor sales of food, beverage and novelties. The

decrease in 2021 and 2020 operating revenues is a direct result of the global pandemic causing both facilities to "go

dark" beginning March 14th, 2020 and stay that way through the end of the 2020 fiscal year and most of the 2021

fiscal year. The impact seems even more stark compared to fiscal year 2019 which saw attendance records broken

and per capita spending and per event settlements at the best in the Authority's history.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses include costs associated with the daily operation and continual upgrade and maintenance of

DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena, as well as administrative costs related to the overall operating of the Authority.

Generally, administrative costs relate to insurance, personnel services, and professional services. In 2021, operating

expenses decreased even more than prior year to minimize as much as possible operating revenue losses due to the

pandemic. Many strategies were implemented to maintain the integrity and security of the facilities while

decreasing costs to ensure the facilities were ready to quickly return to normal operations when needed.

8

50 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020 2019

Equipment 1,135,326$        949,807$           1,322,762$       

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

In 2020, operating expenses decreased at a lower rate than operating revenues as certain operating needs of the

facilities remain, even when the facilities are not in use. Additionally certain major capital replacement and repair

projects continued, and at a quicker pace because vendors were able to continue work instead of work around

scheduled events of the facilities.

Nonoperating Revenues

Nonoperating revenues result primarily from a parking lease (Area #2) and investment income. As cash is generated

by operations, the Authority gauges future cash flow needs and invests excess cash as available to maximize return

and value for the Authority. In 2021, investment income decreased significantly as investments matured and were

used to cover operating losses and a refundable deposit to the City of Grand Rapids for use in a potential

amphitheater project funded initially by a grant from the State of Michigan received late in the 2019 fiscal year.

In 2020, investment returns initially increased at the beginning of the fiscal year, but then began to decrease about

the same time the global pandemic hit, reflecting similar decreases in the Federal funds rate. Additionally, lease

payments decreased at the Arena Area #2 lot, reflecting a large decrease in parking volume after the virtual

shutdown of the State of Michigan in late March, 2020.

Transfer of Constructed Assets

While the amphitheater project was considered to be in the Proof of Concept (POC) stage in fiscal year 2019 and no

funds were spent, certain expenses for feasibility, site selection and related consulting services were incurred during

fiscal years 2020 ($350,207) and 2021 ($368,400). Remaining grant funds and associated interest earned thereon

were spent on a refundable option to purchase real estate from the City of Grand Rapids for the amphitheater site.

Since the option is refundable, the remaining balance of grant funds is considered unearned revenue at June 30,

2021.

Bonds issued by the City‐County Building Authority ("CCBA") and the City of Grand Rapids Downtown Development

Authority ("DDA") are collateralized by assets and construction expenses associated with DeVos Place Convention

Center and Van Andel Arena, respectively. During fiscal years 2021 and 2020, construction expenses of

approximately $873,500 and $440,000, respectively, were transferred to the City‐County Building Authority and the

Downtown Development Authority. When the bonds issued by the City‐County Building Authority have been retired,

title to both the Arena and DeVos Place will be conveyed to the Authority. 

Capital Assets. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Authority had invested $1,135,326 and $949,807, respectively, net of

accumulated depreciation, in capital assets (see the table below). Additional information regarding the Authority's

capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the financial statements. 

The facilities managed by the Authority were constructed with bonds issued by the CCBA and the DDA. When the

bonds have been retired, title to both the Arena and DeVos Place will be conveyed to the Authority. 

9

51 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Management's Discussion and Analysis

Economic Condition and Outlook

Debt Administration. The Authority had no long‐term debt as of June 30, 2021, 2020 or 2019. 

Management believes that the Grand Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena Authority is in good condition both

administratively and financially, even considering the global pandemic and it's impact on the concert and convention

business strengthened by the commitment of federal, state and local grants to mitigate the effects of it. The

Authority further believes that eventually, this business will come back in a robust way, however how the business

operates may be different in the future. This report covers the twentieth and twenty‐first years of operations. The

Authority's operations and finance committees continue to monitor policies and practices governing facility rates,

booking preferences and quality of service. Long‐term booking activity, enhanced by the services of Experience

Grand Rapids, continues to draw commitments for convention center activity, which is now booking through

calendar year 2030.

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances and to demonstrate the

Authority’s accountability for the revenue it earns. Questions about this report or requests for additional financial

information should be directed to the Grand Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena Authority's Administrative

Manager at 303 Monroe Avenue NW, Grand Rapids, MI 49503. 

Requests for Information

The Authority's facilities include a 12,000+ seat capacity Van Andel Arena, a 2,400 seat DeVos Performance Hall, a

685 parking space facility below the convention center complex, a 160,000 square foot full‐service exhibit hall,

related meeting rooms offering over 24,000 square feet of additional space, as well as a 40,000 square foot ballroom.

As an additional signal to the belief that the business will come back after the pandemic, the Authority has taken

initial steps to increase their facility capacity through a potential public outdoor amphitheater.

The fiscal year 2022 (beginning July 1, 2021) budget forecasts operating revenues of $10.3 million with operating

expenses (before depreciation) of $11.6 million, reflecting full‐time staffing returning in phases in the first four

months of the fiscal year to support events at the arena (expected to return to full capacity on or after October,

2021) and performance hall and convention center (limited capacity in the first quarter, increasing gradually in the

second quarter and at full capacity on or after January of 2022). The Authority's fiscal year 2022 budget, while

conservative, still provides for healthy operating reserves for the future, all the more strengthened by receipt in

August of 2021 of the initial installment of a $10 million Shuttered Venue Operators Grant award. Debt service

obligations related to Van Andel Arena and DeVos Place Convention Center are being financed by Grand Rapids

Downtown Development Authority tax increment revenues and Kent County lodging excise tax revenues.

10

52 of 134



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11

53 of 134



Statements of Net Position

June 30, 

2021 2020

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 13,151,889$      10,693,859$     

Restricted Investments ‐                           5,109,546

Refundable deposit ‐ City of Grand Rapids 4,281,393          ‐

Investments 14,995,689        23,097,494

Accounts receivable, net 785,782              1,463,876

Prepaid expenses 385,989              259,371

Total current assets 33,600,742        40,624,146       

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets being depreciated, net 1,135,326          949,807

Total assets 34,736,068        41,573,953       

Liabilities (all current)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 454,694              647,716

Accrued expenses 1,234,918          942,906

Advance ticket sales 11,136,104        9,701,552

Advance deposits 624,715              653,659

Unearned revenue 6,353,391          7,049,633

Total liabilities (all current) 19,803,822        18,995,466       

Net position

Investment in capital assets 1,135,326          949,807             

Unrestricted 13,796,920        21,628,680       

Total net position 14,932,246$      22,578,487$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

12

54 of 134



Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020

Operating revenues

Charges for services ‐ facilities 1,583,320$        11,985,625$     

Operating expenses

Personnel services 3,031,060          4,816,904         

Utilities 1,571,663          2,028,267         

Supplies and other expenses 3,598,885          3,330,456         

Contractual services 2,662,039          4,228,674         

Depreciation 469,989              526,988             

Repairs and maintenance 668,222              861,574             

Professional services 113,906              73,246               

Total operating expenses 12,115,764        15,866,109       

Operating loss (10,532,444)       (3,880,484)        

Nonoperating revenues

Interest revenue 218,265              642,749             

Federal grant revenues 1,909,785          ‐                          

State grant revenues 1,368,400          350,207             

Other revenue  263,244              314,418             

Total nonoperating revenues 3,759,694          1,307,374         

Loss before transfers out (6,772,750)         (2,573,110)        

Transfer of constructed assets (873,491)            (440,149)           

Change in net position (7,646,241)         (3,013,259)        

Net position, beginning of year 22,578,487        25,591,746       

Net position, end of year 14,932,246$      22,578,487$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

13

55 of 134



Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from facility operations 3,412,862$        13,861,668$     

Cash payments to employees (3,023,859)         (5,213,480)        

Cash payments for goods and services (8,723,227)         (11,307,944)      

Net cash used in operating activities (8,334,224)         (2,659,756)        

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

State and Federal grants 2,909,785          ‐                          

Deposits made to the City of Grand Rapids (4,281,393)         ‐                          

Acquisition/construction of capital assets (655,508)            (154,033)           

Acquisition/construction of transferred assets (873,491)            (440,149)           

Other receipts 263,244              314,418             

Net cash used in capital and related

financing activities (2,637,363)         (279,764)           

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest and dividends received 218,265              642,749             

Proceeds from sale of investments 14,327,398        6,655,390         

Purchases of investments (1,116,046)         (5,232,045)        

Net cash provided by investing activities 13,429,617        2,066,094         

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 2,458,030          (873,426)           

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 10,693,859        11,567,285       

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 13,151,889$      10,693,859$     

continued…

GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

14

56 of 134



Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 

2021 2020

GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Reconciliation of operating loss

to net cash used in operating

activities

Operating loss (10,532,444)$    (3,880,484)$      

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss

to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation expense 469,989              526,988             

Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivables, net 678,094              587,708             

Prepaid expenses (126,618)            514,229             

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (193,022)            (1,557,529)        

Accrued expenses 292,012              (390,920)           

Advance ticket sales 1,434,552          1,392,885         

Advance deposits (28,944)               188,428             

Unearned revenue (327,843)            (41,061)              

Net cash used in operating activities (8,334,224)$       (2,659,756)$      

concluded

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these basic financial statements.

15

57 of 134



This page intentionally left blank.

16

58 of 134



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17

59 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

1.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Grand Rapids ‐ Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "Authority") was created by the City of

Grand Rapids (the "City") and the County of Kent (the "County"), under the provisions of Act 203 of the

Public Acts of Michigan of 1999. The Authority was established for the purpose of acquiring, constructing,

improving, enlarging, renewing, replacing, repairing, financing, refinancing, equipping and operating

convention facilities (including all or part of, or any combination of, a convention hall, auditorium, arena,

meeting rooms, exhibition area and related adjacent public areas, together with appurtenant property

including parking lots and structures) and real property on which they are located.

The accounting and reporting policies of the Authority conform in all material respects to generally

accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting

Standards Board (GASB) is the standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and

financial reporting principles, which are primarily set forth in the GASB’s Codification of Governmental

Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards (GASB Codification). Following is a summary of the

significant policies:

The Authority also includes the operations of the Van Andel Arena (the "Arena") which provides space for

conventions, concerts, sporting events, meetings and other performances. The Grand Rapids Downtown

Development Authority (the "DDA'') maintains ownership of certain capital assets until the CCBA bonds are

retired in 2031 according to the terms of the operating agreement signed by the CCBA, DDA and the

Authority. At that time, ownership of these capital assets will be transferred to the Authority.

The Authority includes the operations of DeVos Place which provides space for conventions, concerts,

meetings and other performances. Capital assets of DeVos Place were transferred to the City‐County

Building Authority (the "CCBA") where they are pledged until the related bonds are retired in 2031. At that

time, ownership of these capital assets will be transferred to the Authority.

The Authority is a special‐purpose entity that uses proprietary fund reporting. Proprietary funds distinguish

operating revenues and expenses from non‐operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally

result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the proprietary

funds' principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority's proprietary fund is

charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services,

administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this

definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The Authority uses the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of

the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility

requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

18

60 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

Restricted Investments

Receivables

Prepaid Expenses

State statutes authorize governments to deposit in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions,

and savings and loan associations, and to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain commercial

paper, repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances, and mutual funds composed of otherwise legal

investments.

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated

portion that is expected to be uncollectible.

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating

revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in

connection with an enterprise fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the

enterprise fund is charges to customers for facility rentals, sales and services. Operating expenses for

enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on

capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating

revenues and expenses.

Restricted investments consist of amounts received in advance for a state grant project for which costs

have not yet been reimbursed to the CAA operations cash account where grant expenses are paid.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as

prepaid items.

The Authority considers cash and all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be

cash equivalents for the statements of cash flows.

The Authority participates in the Kent County Investment Pool (the "Pool") which is managed by the

County Treasurer. Investments underlying the County External Investment Pool consist primarily of short‐

term certificates of deposit, which are carried at cost plus accrued interest, and U.S. treasuries and

agencies, which are carried at fair value. Investment income earned as a result of cash pooling is allocated

to participating governments. Positions in external investment pools are not required to be categorized

within the fair value hierarchy.

19

61 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

Capital Assets

Years

Buildings and structures 1‐34

Equipment 3‐10

Unearned Revenues

Compensated Absences

Capital assets, which are limited to certain building and structures and equipment, are stated at cost.

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000

and an estimated useful life of three or more years. The facilities managed by the Authority were

constructed with bonds issued by the CCBA and the DDA. When the bonds have been retired, title to both

the Arena and DeVos Place will be conveyed to the Authority. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend

asset lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as

projects are constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight‐line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Amounts received in advance of project costs being incurred are reported as unearned revenue. During the

year ended June 30, 2019, the Authority received $5 million in grant funds from the State of Michigan to be

used for a capital project. During the year ended June 30, 2020, $350,207 was spent. During the year

ended June 30, 2021, $368,400 was spent; the remaining balance not spent was deposited with the City of

Grand Rapids for the refundable option to purchase real estate for a potential outdoor public

amphitheater and is considered unearned revenue. Additionally, as part of the management agreement

with SMG effective for fiscal year 2019, SMG paid the Authority a $1 million contribution to be amortized

over a 20 year period. The Authority recognized $50,000 as revenue in the current and prior year. The

remaining unamortized amount as of June 30, 2021 of $850,000 will be recognized over the term of the

agreement.

Employees are credited with 20 days of vacation each calendar year, which cannot be carried over.

Accrued compensated absences accumulated from January to June and not yet used totaled $175,782 and

$177,144 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

20

62 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

Revenues

Use of Estimates

2.

June 30, 

2021 2020

Statement of net position

Cash and cash equivalents 13,151,889$      10,693,859$     

Restricted Investments ‐                          5,109,546         

Investments 14,995,689        23,097,494       

Total 28,147,578$      38,900,899$     

Deposits and investments

Bank deposits ‐ checking / savings accounts 13,151,889$      10,693,859$     

Investments in the Kent County Investment Pool 14,995,689        28,207,040       

Total 28,147,578$      38,900,899$     

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the

Authority’s deposits may not be returned. State law does not require and the Authority does not have a

policy for deposit custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2021, $12,235,549 of the Authority’s bank balance of

$13,006,001 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized. At June

30, 2020, $9,658,242 of the Authority’s bank balance of $10,658,751 was exposed to custodial credit risk

because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and

disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the statement of net position follows:

The Authority records facilities revenue upon completion of the event at DeVos Place or the Arena.

Accordingly, amounts received for advance ticket sales or deposits are recorded as unearned revenue until

that time. Costs incurred prior to an event are recorded as prepaid expenses and charged to expense upon

completion of the event. In accordance with the SMG facility management agreement, certain direct event

expenses billed to facility customers are netted against the related event revenue that they generate.

Event revenues are reported net of related event expenses of $1,137,519 and $6,244,288 for the years

ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

21

63 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

Credit Risk. State law limits investments to specific government securities, certificates of deposit and bank

accounts with qualified financial institutions, commercial paper with specific maximum maturities and

ratings when purchased, bankers acceptances of specific financial institutions, qualified mutual funds and

qualified external investment pools as identified in the list of authorized investments in the summary of

significant accounting policies. The Authority’s investment policy does not have specific limits in excess of

state law on investment credit risk. The County investment pool is not rated. Additional information

regarding credit risk of the investments held in the County investment pool can be found in the notes to

the financial statements of the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

Interest Rate Risk. State law limits the allowable investments and the maturities of some of the allowable

investments as identified in the summary of significant accounting policies. The Authority’s investment

policy does not have specific limits in excess of state law on investment maturities as a means of managing

its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The Authority's investments at June

30, 2021 and 2020 consisted entirely of balances in the Kent County Investment Pool. Such amounts are

accessible to the Authority on demand. The Authority's investments do not have identifiable maturity

dates. Additional information regarding interest rate risk can be found in the notes to the financial

statements of the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of

the Authority’s investment in a single issuer. State law limits allowable investments but does not limit

concentration of credit risk as identified in the list of authorized investments in the summary of significant

accounting policies. The Authority's investment policy does not have specific limits in excess of state law

on concentration of credit risk. All investments held at year end are reported above. Information on

concentration of credit risk for the County Investment Pool can be found in the notes to the financial

statements of the County's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

The Authority's investment policy does not specifically address this risk, although the Authority believes

that due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical to insure

all bank deposits. As a result, the Authority evaluates each financial institution with which it deposits

Authority funds and assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an acceptable

estimated risk level are used as depositories.

Custodial Credit Risk – Investments. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of

the failure of the counterparty, the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or

collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. State law does not require and the

Authority does not have a policy for investment custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the

Authority's investments were not subject to custodial credit risk. Additional information regarding

custodial credit risk can be found in the notes to the financial statements of the County’s Annual

Comprehensive Financial Report.

22

64 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

3. 

June 30, 

2021 2020

Facility customers/events 789,673$           914,806$          

Ancillary revenues 39,255                625,322            

Allowance for uncollectible accounts (43,146)              (76,252)             

785,782$           1,463,876$       

4. 

Beginning  Ending

Balance Additions Disposals Transfers Balance

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and structures 322,431$           ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                        322,431$          

Equipment 4,299,341          655,508             ‐                          ‐                          4,954,849         

4,621,772          655,508             ‐                          ‐                          5,277,280         

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and structures (322,431)            ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          (322,431)           

Equipment (3,349,534)         (469,989)            ‐                          ‐                          (3,819,523)        

(3,671,965)         (469,989)            ‐                          ‐                          (4,141,954)        

Capital assets, net 949,807$           185,519$           ‐$                        ‐$                        1,135,326$       

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Accounts receivables are comprised of the following:

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES

CAPITAL ASSETS

23

65 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

Beginning  Ending

Balance Additions Disposals Transfers Balance

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and structures 322,431$           ‐$                        ‐$                        ‐$                        322,431$          

Equipment 4,294,853          154,033             (149,545)            ‐                          4,299,341         

4,617,284          154,033             (149,545)            ‐                          4,621,772         

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and structures (322,431)            ‐                          ‐                          ‐                          (322,431)           

Equipment (2,972,091)         (526,988)            149,545             ‐                          (3,349,534)        

(3,294,522)         (526,988)            149,545             ‐                          (3,671,965)        

Capital assets, net 1,322,762$        (372,955)$          ‐$                        ‐$                        949,807$          

5.

6.

7.

The Authority has entered into an agreement with SMG to manage the operations of DeVos Place and the

Arena through June 30, 2028.

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions,

natural disasters, and employee injuries. The Authority carries commercial insurance for most risks of loss,

including employee life, health and accident insurance. The Authority has not experienced settlements in

excess of insurance coverage during the past three years. 

The Authority pays SMG an annual base management fee and an incentive fee based on the results of

operations of DeVos Place and the Arena. For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, total management

and incentive fees earned by SMG were approximately $361,000 and $359,000, respectively, and are

recorded in contractual services expense.

The Authority is exposed to a number of asserted and unasserted potential claims encountered in the

normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of these matters will not have a

material effect on the financial position of the Authority.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

RISK MANAGEMENT

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Authority offers a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Sections 409 and 457 of the Internal

Revenue Code (the "Plan") that will provide for payments upon completion of performance requirements

as established by the Plan agreement. The Plan assets are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of

participants and designated beneficiaries. As such, these amounts have not been included in the financial

statements. There were no contributions in fiscal year 2021 or 2020.

24

66 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements

8.

In July of 2021, the performance requirements established by the Plan agreement were met and plan

assets were transferred from the trust to the Authority to pay the participant. Additional funding of

approximately $12,500 by the Authority was necessary to complete the obligations under the Plan.

CORONAVIRUS (COVID‐19)

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the novel coronavirus outbreak (COVID‐19) to be a

global pandemic. The pandemic has resulted in operational challenges for the Authority as it determines

the appropriate methods to provide services to its patrons. The Federal government has also provided

significant resources to help mitigate the impacts of COVID‐19. The Authority received over $1.9 million

during fiscal year 2021 passed through the County to be used to respond to the impacts of the COVID‐19

pandemic through the CARES Act. Additionally subsequent to year end, the Authority has been awarded

$10 million through the Shuttered Venue Operators Grant. At this time, management does not believe

that any ongoing negative financial impact related to the pandemic would be material to the Authority.

    

25

67 of 134



This page intentionally left blank.

26

68 of 134



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

27

69 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Actual Over

(Under)

Budget Actual Budget

Operating revenues

Charges for services ‐ facilities 2,359,029$        1,583,320$        (775,709)$         

Operating expenses

Personnel services 3,044,250          3,031,060          (13,190)             

Utilities 1,841,846          1,571,663          (270,183)           

Supplies and other expenses 852,365             3,598,885          2,746,520         

Contractual services 2,437,269          2,662,039          224,770            

Depreciation ‐                          469,989             469,989            

Repairs and maintenance 1,005,414          668,222             (337,192)           

Professional services 208,700             113,906             (94,794)             

Total operating expenses 9,389,844          12,115,764        2,725,920         

Operating loss (7,030,815)         (10,532,444)       (3,501,629)        

Nonoperating revenues

Interest revenue 140,000             218,265             78,265               

Federal grant revenues 1,985,817          1,909,785          (76,032)             

State grant revenues 4,893,061          1,368,400          (3,524,661)        

Other revenue 234,000             263,244             29,244               

Total nonoperating revenues 7,252,878          3,759,694          (3,493,184)        

Income (loss) before transfers out 222,063             (6,772,750)         (6,994,813)        

Transfer of constructed assets (11,145,729)       (873,491)            10,272,238       

Change in net position (10,923,666)       (7,646,241)         3,277,425         

Net position, beginning of year 22,578,487        22,578,487        ‐                         

Net position, end of year 11,654,821$      14,932,246$      3,277,425$       

28

70 of 134



Year Ended

 June 30, 2021

Single Audit Act 

Compliance

Grand Rapids ‐ Kent County 

Convention/Arena Authority

71 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Table of Contents

Page

1

2

3

5

7

10

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Schedule of Expenditures

of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

    

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

72 of 134



 

     

Rehmann is an independent member of Nexia International. 

 

  
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

November 26, 2021

Members of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority Board

Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena

Authority (the "Authority") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the

financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. We issued

our report thereon dated November 26, 2021, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial

statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements

that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of

federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of

Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and is not a required part of the basic financial

statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.

The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial

statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements

or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of

expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whole. 

1

73 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Assistance

Listing Passed Pass‐through / Federal

Federal Agency / Cluster / Program Title   Number   Through   Grantor Number   Expenditures

U.S. Department of Treasury
COVID‐19 Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) 21.019 Kent County SLT0177 1,909,785$       

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

2

74 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2. 10% DE MINIMIS COST RATE

    

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal grant

activity of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "Authority") under programs of

the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in

accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 

Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is

not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the

Authority.

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting, which is described

in Note 1 to the Authority's financial statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost

principles contained in the Uniform Guidance or other applicable guidance, wherein certain types of

expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass‐through entity identifying

numbers are presented where available.

For purposes of charging indirect costs to federal awards, the Authority has not elected to use the de

minimis cost rate as permitted by §200.414 of the Uniform Guidance.

3

75 of 134



This page intentionally left blank.

4

76 of 134



 

     

Rehmann is an independent member of Nexia International. 

 

  
 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material

weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal

control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial

statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s

internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s

internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or

detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material

misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a

timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control

that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.

Members of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority Board

Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Grand Rapids‐

Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "Authority"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021

and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic

financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 26, 2021. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

November 26, 2021

5

77 of 134



Compliance and Other Matters

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free

from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and

material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those

provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be

reported under Government Auditing Standards.

6

78 of 134



 

     

Rehmann is an independent member of Nexia International. 

 

  
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance of the Authority’s major federal program

based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit

of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code

of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct

and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence about the Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and

conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Independent Auditors’ Responsibility

Management’s Responsibility

We have audited the compliance of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the

"Authority") with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement

that could have a direct and material effect on the Authority’s major federal program for the year

ended June 30, 2021. The Authority’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors’

results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

November 26, 2021

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Members of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority Board

Grand Rapids, Michigan

7

79 of 134



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their

assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance

requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over

compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such

that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance

requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A

significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of

deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal

program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important

enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over

compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control

over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and

performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance

with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal

program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report

on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do

not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance.

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal

program for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major

federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s

compliance.

8

80 of 134



The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of

the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Purpose of this Report

9

81 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SECTION I ‐ SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements

yes X no

yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements 

noted? yes X no

Federal Awards

yes X no

yes X none reported

yes X no

report issued on compliance for each major program:

Assistance Listing Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster Type of Report

20.019 COVID‐19 ‐ Coronavirus Relief Fund Unmodified

yes X no

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 

to be reported in accordance with

Type of report the auditor issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs:  $              750,000 

Auditee qualified as low‐risk auditee?  

Identification of major programs and type of auditors’ 

10

82 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None reported

11

83 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None reported

    

12

84 of 134



�

�����
���������	������
����
�����������������������������������

� �
Members of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County

Convention/Arena Authority Board

Grand Rapids, Michigan

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain

reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial

reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for

the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial

reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Authority solely for

the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such

internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our

professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process.

However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to

communicate to you.

We have provided our findings regarding internal control over financial reporting and compliance noted

during our audit in a separate letter to you dated November 26, 2021. In addition, we noted a certain

other matter which is included in Attachment A to this letter.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated October 28, 2021, our responsibility, as described by

professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that

have been prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of

the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

November 26, 2021

We have audited the financial statements of the Grand Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena

Authority (the "Authority") as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and have issued our

report thereon dated November 26, 2021. Professional standards require that we advise you of the

following matters relating to our audit.

85 of 134



Page 2

▪

▪

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates and determined that

they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible receivable balances is based on past

experience and future expectation for collection of various account balances.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are

based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and

experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting

estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because

of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current

judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements were:

There have been no initial selections of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting

policies or their application during the year.

No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform

you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of

significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of

authoritative guidance or consensus.

Management’s estimate of the useful lives of depreciable capital assets is based on the length of

time it is believed that those assets will provide some economic benefit in the future.

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the

significant accounting policies adopted by the Authority is included in Note 1 to the financial statements.

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm has complied with all relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence.

Qualitative Aspects of the Authority’s Significant Accounting Practices

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in

our engagement letter and in our meeting about planning matters on November 5, 2021.

86 of 134



Page 3

In the normal course of our professional association with the Authority, we generally discuss a variety of

matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating and

regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks

of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the

Authority’s auditors.

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and

accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations

with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in

Attachment C to this letter.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,

whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing

matter, which could be significant to the Authority’s financial statements or the auditors’ report. No

such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and

likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and

communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us

to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant

classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. In

addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements

that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. We did not

identify any misstatements during our audit.

Significant Difficulties Encountered During the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of

the audit.

87 of 134



Page 4

Very truly yours,

This information is intended solely for the use of the governing body and management of the Grand 

Rapids‐Kent County Convention/Arena Authority and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone other than these specified parties.

Upcoming Changes in Accounting Standards

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) are continually changing in order to promote the

usability and enhance the applicability of information included in external financial reporting. While it

would not be practical to include an in‐depth discussion of every upcoming change in professional

standards, Attachment B to this letter contains a brief overview of recent pronouncements of the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and their related effective dates. Management is

responsible for reviewing these standards, determining their applicability, and implementing them in

future accounting periods.

88 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS ‐ KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Attachment A – Comments and Recommendations
For the June 30, 2021 Audit

    

During our audit, we became aware of a certain other matter that is an opportunity for strengthening internal

control and/or improving operating efficiency. This memorandum summarizes our comments and

recommendations regarding the matter. Our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial

reporting is described in our report, dated November 26, 2021, issued in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards. This memorandum does not affect that report Grand Rapids ‐ Kent County Convention/Arena

Authority.

Uniform Grant Guidance Policies and Procedures 

The Uniform Grant Guidance, applicable for federal grants issued on or after December 26, 2014, introduced

requirements and terminology related to federal awards. With the Authority receiving federal funding in excess of

$750,000 the Authority was subject to single audit requirements during the year and a separate compliance audit

was conducted. While the federal funding received in this year was specifically excluded from Uniform Grant

requirements and therefore the Authority was in compliance with requirements for the funding received, we

encourage the Authority to have written policies and procedures over grants administration and these policies

and procedures to conform with the Uniform Grant Guidance requirements in the event of receiving federal

funding in future years that would be applicable to Uniform Grant Guidance. 

A1

89 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS‐KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Attachment B – Upcoming Changes in Accounting Standards / Regulations
For the June 30, 2021 Audit

GASB 87  Leases

Effective 06/15/2022 (your FY 2022)

GASB 89  Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period

Effective 12/15/2021 (your FY 2022)

GASB 91  Conduit Debt Obligations

Effective 12/15/2022 (your FY 2023)

GASB 92  Omnibus 2020

Effective 06/15/2022 (your FY 2022)

GASB 93  Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates

Effective 06/15/2022 (your FY 2022)

The following pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) have been released

recently and may be applicable to the Authority in the near future. We encourage management to review the

following information and determine which standard(s) may be applicable to the Authority. For the complete text of

these and other GASB standards, visit www.gasb.org and click on the “Standards & Guidance” tab. If you have

questions regarding the applicability, timing, or implementation approach for any of these standards, please contact

your audit team.

This standard establishes a single model for reporting all leases (including those previously classified as operating

and capital). Lessees will now report offsetting intangible lease assets and lease liabilities equal to the present value

of future lease payments. Lessors will report offsetting lease receivables and deferred inflows of resources.

This standard eliminates the requirement for governments to capitalize interest during the construction period for

business‐type activities. As this simplifies the accounting for interest, early implementation is encouraged. We do

not expect this standard to have any significant effect on the Authority.

This standard defines "conduit debt obligations", where a government issues debt whose proceeds are received and

repaid by a third‐party obligor without the issuer being primarily liable. The standard requires issuers to disclose

conduit debt obligations, but not to record a liability unless it is more likely than not that a commitment made by

the issuer will require it to support one or more debt payments for a conduit debt obligation. We do not expect this

standard to have any significant effect on the Authority.

This standard includes a variety of small technical revisions to previously issued GASB statements. We do not expect

this standard to have any significant effect on the Authority.

This standard provides guidance to governments with agreements with variable payments tied to LIBOR, and how to

transition them to a new reference rate. We do not expect this standard to have any significant effect on the

Authority.

B1

90 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS‐KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Attachment B – Upcoming Changes in Accounting Standards / Regulations
For the June 30, 2021 Audit

GASB 94  Public‐Private and Public‐Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements

Effective 06/15/2023 (your FY 2023)

GASB 96  Subscription‐Based Information Technology Arrangements

Effective 06/15/2023 (your FY 2023)

GASB 97  Certain Component Unit Criteria and IRC Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans

Effective 06/15/2022 (your FY 2022)

This standard addresses accounting and financial reporting for arrangements in which a government contracts with

an operator to provide public services by conveying control of the right to operate or use a capital asset for a period

of time in an exchange or exchange‐like transaction. We do not expect this standard to have any significant effect

on the Authority.

This standard expands on the new guidance for leases and applies it to computer software contracts (subscriptions)

with similar characteristics. Governments that subscribe to a vendor's IT software will now report offsetting

intangible subscription assets and subscription liabilities equal to the present value of future subscription payments.

This standard amends the requirements for when to report defined contribution pension plans (such as 401k and

403b plans) as fiduciary component units, and how to account for Section 457 deferred compensation plans.

    

B2

91 of 134



GRAND RAPIDS‐KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

Attachment C – Management Representations
For the June 30, 2021 Audit

The following pages contain the written representations that we requested from management.

C1

92 of 134



93 of 134

MAndringa
Text Box



94 of 134

MAndringa
Text Box



95 of 134

MAndringa
Text Box



96 of 134

MAndringa
Text Box



97 of 134

MAndringa
Text Box



98 of 134

MAndringa
Text Box



99 of 134

MAndringa
Text Box



 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
 
To:  CAA Board  
  CAA Finance Committee 
 
From:  Robert J. White 
 
Subject: Consolidated Financial Report 
  FY 2021 Recap – Budget to Actual 
 
Date:  November 5, 2021 
 

 
The attached material summarizes the CAA administrative operating budget and consolidated income 
statement for fiscal years ended June 30, 2020-2021 and provides a comparison to the current fiscal 
year (FY 2022) budget. 
 
Table D provides a summary of the consolidated budget by facility for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2022, along with actual results for FY 2020 and FY 2021.  The FY 2021 budget, as adopted, forecasted 
an ($11,077,248) draw on unrestricted fund balance.  Upon completion of the fiscal year and 
release of the audited financial statements, it was determined that the Authority had drawn 
($7,831,760) from unrestricted fund balance.  Specific variances are summarized in the following 
manner: 
 
Van Andel Arena® 
 
The original budgeted Operating Revenues, of $0.9 million, was believed to be a reasonably achievable 
goal.  Unfortunately, with continuing closure of the facility, year-end operating revenues were reported 
at $0.7 million. 
 
The decline in operating revenues, from original budget, was more than offset by decreased operating 
expenses resulting in a lapse of $0.8 million from original budget. 
 
DeVos Place® Convention Center 
 
FY2021 budgeted operating revenues, of $1.0 million, assumed reopening of the facility in the third 
fiscal quarter.  Continuing closure of the facility resulted in a significant decline from originally budgeted 
revenues reflecting a balance $0.7 million below the original forecast. 
 
Operating expenses came in $0.6 million below the original authorization, partially offsetting the 
operating revenue decline. 
 
 
 

100 of 134



 
 
The DeVos Place parking facility, a part of the convention facility account, experienced a decline of $0.2 
million from the original budget forecast. 
 
Administrative (Other) 
 
Other non-operating revenues included $0.1 million of COVID funds to cover costs incurred to provide 
facilities for the clinic. 
 
Several line items, Including Consulting Services and the Diversity Initiative, came in significantly under 
budget resulting in a savings of $0.4 million. 
 
Capital Expenditures 
 
The FY2021 budget included a spending allowance of almost $4.4 million.  Five “in progress” balances, 
totaling $0.9 million, were carried over to the FY2022 capital budget. All other projects were completed 
or closed at a slight lapse ($493,722) from budget. 
 
All these revenue/expenditure variances resulted in a lower draw on Unrestricted Fund Balance than 
anticipated in the original budget, from a forecasted draw of $11.1 million to an actual draw of $7.8 
million. 
 
The Fiscal Year 2022 budget forecasts a draw of $2.2 million from Unrestricted Fund Balance. This draw 
is required as a result of an anticipated operating deficit of $1.2 million and a capital budget (excluding 
restricted accounts) of $1.0 million. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   
 
Table A – SMG Facilities Budget 
Table B – Administrative-Operating/Capital Replacement Budget 
Table B - Notes  
Table B-1 – Detail of Expenditure Estimates 
Table C – Consolidated Income Statement 
Table D – Budget Summary by Facility/Other 
Table E – Summary of Consolidated Income Statement – 10 Years 
 

101 of 134



FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2021 FY 2021 FY 2022

Actual Budget Estimate Actual Budget

Van Andel Arena

   Operating - Revenues 5,832,637$ 855,248$      604,887$      729,644$      4,746,644$          

                    - Expenses - Facilities (3,947,676)  (3,161,016)    (2,351,226)    (2,315,851)    (4,330,348)           

                               - Management Fees (179,263)     (182,848)       (180,338)       (180,339)       (183,945)              

                               - Incentive Fees -                  -                    -                    -                    -                           

   Net Operating Income 1,705,698   (2,488,616)    (1,926,677)    (1,766,546)    232,351               

DeVos Place

   Operating - Revenues 4,966,722   975,759        158,928        288,560        4,143,265            

                   - Expenses - Facilities (6,340,580)  (4,606,032)    (4,047,220)    (4,028,560)    (5,725,206)           

                              - Management Fees (179,263)     (182,848)       (180,338)       (180,339)       (183,945)              

                               - Incentive Fees -                  -                    -                    -                    -                           

   Net Operating Income/(Loss) (1,553,121)  (3,813,121)    (4,068,630)    (3,920,339)    (1,765,886)           

Net Available to CAA:

   Van Andel Arena 1,705,698   (2,488,616)    (1,926,677)    (1,766,546)    232,351               

    DeVos Place (1,553,121)  (3,813,121)    (4,068,630)    (3,920,339)    (1,765,886)           

152,577$    (6,301,737)$  (5,995,307)$  (5,686,885)$  (1,533,535)$         

NOTE:  In the last full fiscal year of Operations (FY2019) ASM Operating Expenses totaled $12.2M. For FY2021, Actual Operating  

             Expenses totaled $6.3M, a reduction of (47.8%).

Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2020 - 2022

Table A

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

SMG Facilities Budget

102 of 134



FY2020 FY 2021 FY 2021 FY 2021 FY 2022

Actual Budget Estimate Actual Budget

Revenues:

Facility Operations 152,577$      (6,301,737)$    (5,995,307)$  (5,686,885)$    (1,533,535)    

Utility Reimbursement 1,783,652     1,644,906       1,356,355     1,477,663       1,924,000     

Transfers from SMG 1,936,229     (4,656,831)      (4,638,952)    (4,209,222)      390,465        

State Grant 350,207        4,969,411       5,649,793     1,368,400       

County Grant -                    1,985,817       1,955,645     1,909,785       

DeVos Place Parking (1) 1,163,477     470,000          442,536        443,267          1,000,000     

VanAndel Parking (1) 314,418        234,000          202,357        263,244          278,989        

Interest (2) 547,468        140,000          165,000        160,264          165,000        

Miscellaneous 118,069        58,022            66,654          179,851          108,000        

   Total Revenues 4,429,868     3,200,419       3,843,033     115,589          1,942,454     

Expenditures:

Utilities (4) 1,783,652     1,644,906       1,356,355     1,477,663       1,924,000     

Other Operating (5) 408,690        162,000          283,652        331,766          404,989        

Administration/Other (6) 1,228,843     1,095,106       646,841        665,859          811,500        

Amphitheater 350,207        4,969,411       4,764,936     483,543          -                    

Facility Maintenance 2,704,598     -                      -                    3,459,519       -                    

Capital 594,182        6,406,244       5,493,656     1,528,999       1,056,567     (3)

   Total Expenditures 7,070,172     14,277,667     12,545,440   7,947,349       4,197,056     

Net Excess (Deficit) (2,640,304)$  (11,077,248)$  (8,702,407)$  (7,831,760)$    (2,254,602)$  

Notes:  See Following Pages

Table B

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Administrative - Operating / Capital Replacement Budget

FY 2020-2022

103 of 134



Notes:

(1)
DeVos Place Parking Rates: FY 2021 FY 2022  

      30 Minutes 1.50$             1.50$    

Daily Maximum 15.00             15.00    

Vehicles with Trailers:  Courtesy Validations (2 Hr. Limit) ASM Designated Only -                 NC*  

Event 10.00             10.00    

     Weekly (ASM Designated Only)** -                 14.00    

Monthly -Public 154.00           154.00  

-Reserved Premium 58.00             58.00    

-County/SMG/ASM (O+M) 62.78             49.82    

 

Van Andel Arena Parking Rates:  

Event 12.00$           12.00$  

Non-Event Coin Unit 12.00             12.00    

Monthly -Public 112.00           112.00  

* No Charge

** Fourteen (14) Day Notice Requirement

(2)
$16.6 million (2/29/21 pool balance) in invested funds at 1.0%.

(3)
FY 2022 Eligible Projects:

DeVos Place®

Lyon Square Project 200,000         

Total DVP 200,000         

Carryover (FY21) Projects:

DVP - Building Maintenance Software (HVAC) 43,740           

DVP - Additional Furniture 30,580           

VAA - Security Upgrades 12,135           

VAA - Suite Refurbishment 370,112         

DVP - Lyon Street Contribution 400,000         

Total Carryover 856,567         

Total FY 2022 Capital Budget 1,056,567$    

Table B-1

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Administrative - Operating / Capital Replacement Budget

FY 2022 Budget

104 of 134



FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2021 FY 2021 FY 2022

Actual Budget Estimate Actual Budget

Utilities(4):

     Electricity 1,183,672$ 1,052,280$ 801,185$    875,880$    1,257,000$ 

     Steam/Gas 465,818      506,595      450,681      483,471      550,000      

     Water/Sewer 134,162      86,031        104,489      118,312      117,000      

1,783,652$ 1,644,906$ 1,356,355$ 1,477,663$ 1,924,000   

Other Operating(5):

   Parking Management 256,321$    75,000$      210,951$    235,495$    236,989$    

   Pedestrian Safety 124,542      22,000        45,701        71,120        101,000      

   Repairs - F&B -                  40,000        -                   40,000        

   Landscaping 27,827        25,000        27,000        25,151        27,000        

408,690$    162,000$    283,652$    331,766$    404,989      

Administration/Other(6):

COVID-19 Preparedness Plan -$                300,000$    -$                -$                

Arena 25-Year Recognition -                  -                  -                  100,000      

Wages 118,116      112,300      115,238      125,305      110,000      

Benefits 32,377        28,806        28,806        26,543        29,000        

Accounting/Audit 54,480        55,000        51,000        60,363        52,000        

Legal Services 15,576        30,000        35,000        53,543        35,000        

DID Assessment(A) 65,284        33,000        32,110        32,110        33,000        

Consulting Services 552,628      200,000      149,851      127,098      * 91,500        **

Insurance 17,429        26,000        24,836        20,610        26,000        

Marketing - CVB/WMSC 200,000      200,000      200,000      200,000      200,000      

Diversity Initiative 140,468      100,000      -                  3,000           100,000      

Procurement of Art (ArtPrize) 2,105           -                  -                  25,000        

Other 30,380        10,000        10,000        17,287        10,000        

Contingent -                  -                  -                  -                  

1,228,843$ 1,095,106$ 646,841$    665,859$    811,500$    

Notes:  

(A)
Downtown Improvement District special assessment contribution from CAA based on benefit allocation formula.

*SMG-$54,401, Potomac Strategic Development-$33,000, DD&M-$7,275 and Progressive AE-$32,422.

**SMG-$55,500; Potomac Strategic Development-$36,000.

Table B-1

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Detail of Expenditure Estimates

FY 2020-2022

105 of 134



FY 2021 FY 2021 FY 2021 FY 2022

Actual Budget Estimate Actual Budget

Operating Revenue:

Event  - VanAndel Arena 871,463$        166,258$        91,852$          92,336$          913,770$        

 - DeVos Place 2,468,476       520,660          71,375            165,237          2,352,417       

Ancillary  - VanAndel Arena 1,663,695       228,632          18,120            54,586            1,334,871       

 - DeVos Place 1,864,083       369,479          (10,637)           25,111            1,401,350       

Other  - VanAndel Arena 3,297,479       460,358          494,915          582,722          2,498,003       

 - DeVos Place 634,163          85,620            98,190            98,212            389,498          

118,069          58,022            1,066,654       179,851          108,000          

Parking  - VanAndel Arena 314,418          234,000          202,357          263,244          278,989          

- DeVos Place 1,163,477       470,000          442,536          443,267          1,000,000       

12,395,323     2,593,029       2,475,362       1,904,566       10,276,898     

Operating Expense / Appropriations:

Facility Operations

 - VanAndel Arena 3,947,676       3,161,016       2,351,226       2,315,851       4,330,348       

 - DeVos Place 6,340,580       4,606,032       4,047,220       4,028,560       5,725,206       

 - Management 358,526          365,696          360,676          360,678          367,890          

 - Incentive -                     -                     -                     -                     

 -  Parking/Maintenance 408,690          162,000          283,652          331,766          404,989          

Administration/Other 1,579,050       1,095,106       646,841          665,859          811,500          

Other Operating (Capital Repair) 2,704,598       -                     -                     3,459,519       -                     

15,339,120     9,389,850       7,689,615       11,162,233     11,639,933     

Operating Income (2,943,797)      (6,796,821)      (5,214,253)      (9,257,667)      (1,363,035)      

Non-Operating Revenue:

Interest/Capital Contribution 897,675          7,095,228       6,770,438       3,438,449       165,000          

Transfer (to) from Capital Acct. (594,182)         (11,375,655)    (10,258,592)    (2,012,542)      (1,056,567)      

303,493          (4,280,427)      (3,488,154)      1,425,907       (891,567)         

Net Income (Loss) (2,640,304)      (11,077,248)    (8,702,407)      (7,831,760)      (2,254,602)      

Fund Balance, beg. of yr. 24,268,984     21,628,680     21,628,680     21,628,680     12,819,334     

Fund Balance, end of yr. 21,628,680$   10,551,432$   12,926,273$   13,796,920$   10,564,732$   

-Administration

FY 2020

Table C

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Income Statement

Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2020-2022

106 of 134



FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2021 FY 2021 FY 2022

Actual Budget Estimate Actual Budget

Van Andel Arena

   Operating - Revenues 5,832,637$   855,248$        604,887$      729,644$        4,746,644$   

                    - Expenses - Facilities (3,947,676)    (3,161,016)      (2,351,226)    (2,315,851)      (4,330,348)    

                               - Management Fees (179,263)       (182,848)         (180,338)       (180,339)         (183,945)       

                               - Incentive Fee -                    -                      -                    -                    

   Net Operating Income (Loss) 1,705,698     (2,488,616)      (1,926,677)    (1,766,546)      232,351        

   Parking 314,418        234,000          202,357        263,244          278,989        

   Pedestrian Safety (82,159)         (13,700)           -                    -                      (65,000)         

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 1,937,957     (2,268,316)      (1,724,320)    (1,503,302)      446,340        

DeVos Place Convention Center

   Operating - Revenues 4,966,722     975,759          158,928        288,560          4,143,265     

                   - Expenses - Facilities (6,340,580)    (4,606,032)      (4,047,220)    (4,028,560)      (5,725,206)    

                              - Management Fees (179,263)       (182,848)         (180,338)       (180,339)         (183,945)       

                              - Incentive Fee -                    -                      -                    -                      -                    

   Net Operating Loss (1,553,121)    (3,813,121)      (4,068,630)    (3,920,339)      (1,765,886)    

   Parking 907,156        395,000          231,585        207,772          763,011        

   Pedestrian Safety (42,382)         (8,300)             (45,701)         (71,120)           (36,000)         

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP (688,347)       (3,426,421)      (3,882,746)    (3,783,687)      (1,038,875)    

Other

Revenues

   Interest 547,468        140,000          165,000        160,264          165,000        

   Miscellaneous 468,276        58,022            1,066,654     179,851          108,000        

1,015,744     198,022          1,231,654     340,115          273,000        

Expenses

   Administration (1,579,050)    (1,095,106)      (646,841)       (665,859)         (811,500)       

   Other Operating (27,827)         (65,000)           (27,000)         (25,151)           (67,000)         

(1,606,877)    (1,160,106)      (673,841)       (691,010)         (878,500)       

     Net Other (591,133)       (962,084)         557,813        (350,895)         (605,500)       

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 658,477        (6,656,821)      (5,049,253)    (5,637,884)      (1,198,035)    

Capital Expenditures (3,298,781)    (4,420,427)      (3,653,154)    (2,193,876)      (1,056,567)    

Results Net of Capital Expenditures (2,640,304)$  (11,077,248)$  (8,702,407)$  (7,831,760)$    (2,254,602)$  

FY 2022 Budget

Table D

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Budget Summary by Facility/Other

FY 2020-2021 Actual

107 of 134



Actual Budget Roll

FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY2022 FY 2022

VAA - Net Proceeds 1,793$   532$      1,610$   1,980$   2,865$   2,338$  4,367$   1,938$   (1,503)$  446$      892$      

DVP - Net Proceeds 784        445        908        1,625     1,465     1,441      1,243     (688)       (3,784)    (1,039)    (783)       

SMG Incentive Fees (331)       -             (344)       (344)       (347)       (353)       (353)       -             -             -             -             

Other-Net Proceeds (313)       (456)       (308)       (565)       (442)       (516)       (447)       (591)       351        (605)       9,395     

Total Net Operating 1,933     521        1,866     2,696     3,541     2,910      4,810     659        (4,936)    (1,198)    9,504     

Capital (962)       (2,565)    (1,130)    (2,361)    (2,360)    (2,618)    (4,245)    (3,299)    (3,194)    
(1)

(1,057)    (1,057)    

Transfer To/(From)  971        (2,044)    736        335        1,181     292         565        (2,640)    (8,130)    (2,255)    8,447     

      Fund Balance

Fund Balance, End of Year 23,204$ 21,160$ 21,896$ 22,230$ 23,411$ 23,703$  24,268$ 21,628$ 13,498$ 11,541$ 21,945$ 

Notes:

(1) Excludes $1,368,400 of projects financed by restricted state grants and $1,909,785 of projects financed by a County grant.  

Actual

Table E

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Consolidated Income Statement - By Facility

Fiscal Years 2013 through FY2022

5-Nov-21

(In Thousands)

108 of 134



Page

Dashboard 1

Summary by Facility

Rolling Forecast 2

Monthly Capital Status 3

Year-to-Date Comparable 4

Trend Analysis 

Monthly Net Operating Proceeds - FY21 & FY22 5

Lagging 12 Months Net Operating Proceeds 6

Significant Notes 7

Administrative Accounts

Year-to-Date Comparable 8

Federal CARES Allotment (County) 9

 

Consolidated Financial Report

 October 31, 2021

109 of 134



Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual

Events 2                               8                 16                  2                        4                          

Attendance  57,100         72,420           16,000               22,931                 

Event Income 21,569$                     277,007$     947,379$      (196)$                171,900$           440,131$              

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual

Events 5                               91               105                65                      26                        

Attendance 226                            96,860         34,025           60,710               7,180                   

Event Income (1,476)$                     872,224$     995,865$      (6,796)$              594,481$           340,460$              

Prior Year Budget Actual

Operating Income (Loss) (1,405,845)$       (1,437,663)$       7,640,772$           

Capital/Repair/Replacement (768,255)            (39,174)              (30,580)                

Net - To/(From) on Fund Balance (2,174,100)$       (1,476,837)$       7,610,192$           (1), (2)

*NOTES: 

(1) Unrestricted Fund Balance at June 30, 2021 - $13,796,920.

(2) Excluding the $8.2 million SBA grant, the 10/31 year-to-date performance - ($592,073). 

Van Andel Arena®

Financial Dashboard

Year-To-Date (4 Months)

 October 31, 2021

DeVos Place®

Consolidated

All Events Concert

All Events Convention/Trade

110 of 134



7/1 - 10/31

Year-to-Date Roll Estimate
(1)

Budget

Van Andel Arena

   Operating - Revenues 1,154,130$    4,038,243$    5,192,373$      4,746,644$                  

                    - Expenses - Facilities (1,084,156)     (3,244,389)    (4,328,545)      (4,330,348)                  

                               - Base Management Fees (60,113)          (125,635)       (185,748)         (183,945)                     

                               - Incentive Fee -                      -                       -                                   

   Net Operating Income (Loss) 9,861              668,219         678,080           232,351                       

   Parking 114,572         164,417         278,989           278,989                       

   Pedestrian Safety (4,351)            (60,649)         (65,000)           (65,000)                       

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 120,082         771,987         892,069           446,340                       

 

DeVos Place Convention Center

   Operating - Revenues 1,021,370      3,378,040      4,399,410        4,143,265                    

                   - Expenses - Facilities (1,732,636)     3,990,767      (5,723,403)      (5,725,206)                  

                              - Base Management Fees (60,113)          (125,635)       (185,748)         (183,945)                     

                              - Incentive Fee -                       -                                   

   Net Operating Income (Loss) (771,379)        (738,362)       (1,509,741)      (1,765,886)                  

   Parking 291,806         471,205         763,011           763,011                       

   Pedestrian Safety (2,805)            (33,195)         (36,000)           (36,000)                       

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP (482,378)        (300,352)       (782,730)         (1,038,875)                  

 

Other  

   Revenues 8,212,812      2,060,188      10,273,000      273,000                       

   Expenses (209,744)        (668,756)       (878,500)         (910,403)                     (4)

     Net Other 8,003,068      1,391,432      9,394,500        (637,403)                     

 

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 7,640,772      1,863,067      9,503,839        (3) (1,229,938)                  

 

Capital/Repair Expenditures (30,580)          (1,025,987)    (1,056,567)      (1,056,567)                  (2)

Results Net of Capital/Repair Expenditures 7,610,192$    837,080$       8,447,272$      (3) (2,286,505)$                

Notes:

(1)A second quarter Roll will be compiled as a part of the December financial report and presented at the February Board meeting.

(2)Includes an approved (9/9/21 agenda) budget amendment to provide for several capital project balances ($86,455) carried  

over from FY 21.  See the June 2021 consolidated financial report for details. 

(3)Includes a $10M - Small Business Administration/Shuttered Venues Operator Grant. Excluding the SBA Grant, total

Net Proceeds/Operating is estimated at ($496,161) and Results Net of Capital/Repair at ($1,552,728).

(4)This report includes a request to increase appropriations, in support for Downtown Improvement District , by $31,903 

(from 50% to 100% of billing).

Grand Rapids-KentA1:H39 County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary by Facility/Other

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022

FY 2022 

111 of 134



 

Actual  Appropriation

FY 2022 Eligible Projects: Budget 7/1-10/31  Roll Lapse

Van Andel Arena®

   -$                  

Total VAA -                  -                -                   -                     

DeVos Place®

Lyon Street Landscape 200,000       -                200,000       -                     

    

     

Total DVP 200,000       -                200,000       -                 

Both Venues

   -                    

 

Carryover (FY20) Projects

DVP Building Maintenance Software-HVAC 43,740         -                43,740         -                     

DVP Additional Furniture 30,580         30,580           -                     

VAA Security Upgrades 12,135          3,541           8,594             

VAA Suite Refresher 370,112       -                370,112       -                     

DVP Lyon Street Landscaping 400,000       -                400,000       -                     

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

Total Carryover 856,567       30,580          817,393       8,594             

Total Unrestricted Accounts 1,056,567     1,017,393    8,594             

     

COVID-19 County Grant (Restricted Account) 48,620         1,380            44,480         2,760             

Total FY 2021 Capital Budget 1,105,187$  31,960$        1,061,873$  11,354$         

Notes: The FY2022 budget, as adopted, included  - $400,000 for Lyon Street Landscape and $370,112 for Suite Refresher.

            The July monthly financial report included a request to re-appropriate a total of $86,455 for Unrestricted Projects

             and $48,620 in the County Grant account.

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Administrative - Operating / Capital Replacement Budget

FY 2022 Budget

112 of 134



Annual Year-To-Date

Change Change

FY 2021 FY 2022 Positive FY 2021 FY 2022 Positive

Final Budget (Negative) 7/1-10/31 7/1 - 10/31 (Negative)

Van Andel Arena

   Operating - Revenues 729,644$        4,746,644$       550.5 479,796$        1,154,130$     140.5

                    - Expenses - Facilities (2,315,851)     (4,330,348)       (87.0) (666,173)        (1,084,156)      (62.7)

                               - Base Management Fees (180,339)        (183,945)          (2.0) (60,113)          (60,113)           -               

                               - Incentive Fee -                     -                       -               -                     -                      -               

   Net Operating Income (Loss) (1,766,546)     232,351            113.2         (246,490)        9,861              104.0

   Parking 263,244          278,989            6.0 51,634            114,572          121.9         

   Pedestrian Safety  (65,000)            (100.0)  (4,351)             (100.0)        

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA (1,503,302)     446,340            129.7 (194,856)        120,082          161.6

DeVos Place Convention Center

   Operating - Revenues 288,560          4,143,265         1,335.8      28,302            1,021,370       3508.8

                   - Expenses - Facilities (4,028,560)     (5,725,206)       (41.6) (1,170,213)     (1,732,636)      (48.1)

                              - Base Management Fees (180,339)        (183,945)          (2.0) (60,113)          (60,113)           -               

                              - Incentive Fee -                     -                       -               -                     -                      -               

   Net Operating Income (Loss) (3,920,339)     (1,765,886)       55.0 (1,202,024)     (771,379)         35.8           

   Parking 207,772          763,011            267.2 77,619            291,806          275.9         

   Pedestrian Safety (71,120)          (36,000)            49.4            (2,805)             (100.0)        

        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP (3,783,687)     (1,038,875)       72.5 (1,124,405)     (482,378)         57.1           

Other

   Revenues 340,115          273,000            (19.7) 82,371            8,212,812       100.0+

   Expenses (691,010)        (910,403)          (31.7) (168,955)        (209,744)         (24.1)          

     Net Other (350,895)        (637,403)          (81.7)          (86,584)          8,003,068       100.0+

Total Net Proceeds/Operating (5,637,884)     (1,229,938)       78.2           (1,405,845)     7,640,772       643.5         

Capital/Repair Expenditures (2,193,876)     (1,056,567)       51.8 (768,255)        (30,580)           96.0           

Results Net of Capital Expenditures (7,831,760)$    (2,286,505)$     70.8           (2,174,100)$    7,610,192$     450.0         

NOTES:

(1) Net of $1,368,400 Restricted State Grant and $1,909,785 Restricted County Grant.

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Budget Summary by Facility/Other

Financial Trends for Year Ending June 30, 2022

113 of 134



114 of 134



115 of 134



Van Andel Arena®

•      Page 1 - Four concerts generated $440,131 in event revenue revenue, a 100% increase over no concerts in the prior year.

•        Page 5 - Net Proceeds of $120,082 increased by 161.6% from prior year of ($194,856).

DeVos Place®

•      Page 1 - Convention/trade show business generated $340,460 in event revenue, an increase of 100% over prior year.

•        Page 5 - Net "proceeds" of ($482,378) increased by 57.1% from prior year Net Proceeds of ($1,124,405).

Significant Notes

116 of 134



Change Change

FY 2021 FY 2022 Positive FY 2021 FY 2022 Positive

Final Budget (Negative) 7/1-10/31 7/1/-10/31 (Negative)

Other

Revenues

Interest/Capital Contr. 210,264$   215,000$    2.3             78,326$        10,547$       (86.5)          

Miscellaneous 129,851     58,000        (55.3)          4,045            8,202,265    100.0+

340,115     273,000      (19.7)          82,371          8,212,812    100.0+

Expenses

Arena 25-Year Recognition -                 100,000      (100.0)        -                    20,350         100.0+

Marketing (CVB/Sports) 200,000     200,000      -                  

Diversity Initiative 3,000         100,000      (3,233.3)      2,500           100.0+

Wages/Benefits 151,848     139,000      8.5             33,327          34,908         (4.7)            

Professional Services 113,906     87,000        23.6           51,779          42,220         18.5           

DID Assessment 32,110       64,903        (102.1)        32,110          31,903         0.6             

Food & Beverage Repairs -                 40,000        (100.0)           

Consulting Services 127,098     91,500        
(1)

28.0           13,600          32,580         (139.6)        

Landscaping 25,151       27,000        (7.4)            3,526            3,526           -               

Procurement of Art  25,000        (100.0)         9,366           (100.0)        

Insurance 20,610       26,000        (26.2)          31,083          29,301         5.7             

Supplies/Other 17,287       10,000        42.2           3,530            3,090           12.5           

691,010     910,403      (31.7)          168,955        209,744       (24.1)          

Net Proceeds - Operating (350,895)$  (637,403)$   (81.7)          (86,584)$       8,003,068$  100.0+

Notes:
(1)

 SMG-$55,500 and Potomac Strategic Development - $36,000.

Actual

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Administrative Accounts

Net Other Detail

Annual

 October 31, 2021

117 of 134



Budget Actual

Revenues:

County Grant 48,620$       1,380$           

Expenses: (48,620)        (1,380)            

Net Balance -$                 -$                   

NOTES:

● County Board Approval - 10/8/2020

● CAA - Funds Received - 10/27/2020 

● ASM - Purchase Orders Issued - 10/28/2020

● CAA Board - Grant Agreement Approved - 11/13/2020

● Timing Limitation - All Grant Funds Must Be Spent on or Before 12/30/2020 

  -Time limit extension for "advertising" expenditures

   Unexpended Balance, of $30,172, returned to Kent County on 01/29/2021

   Reserve balance, of $48,620, held for remaining grant eligible activities 

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Special Accounts

Federal CARES Allotment (County)

Revenues/Expenses

 September 30, 2021

Grant Period:  10/8/20 to 12/30/20

118 of 134



119 of 134



120 of 134



121 of 134



122 of 134



123 of 134



124 of 134



125 of 134



126 of 134



127 of 134



128 of 134



129 of 134



130 of 134



131 of 134



132 of 134



133 of 134



134 of 134


	Agenda.Joint Meeting-December 2021.pdf (p.1)
	November.2021.pdf (p.2-4)
	SMG FY21AuditDVP.pdf (p.5-18)
	SMG FY21AuditVAA.pdf (p.19-32)
	SMG FY21 Audit Management Letter.pdf (p.33-40)
	2021 Audit.pdf (p.41-70)
	2021 SAAC.pdf (p.71-84)
	2021 SAS Letter.pdf (p.85-99)
	Memo - Consolidated Financial Report FY 2021 Recap.pdf (p.100-101)
	2022 Budget Recap.pdf (p.102-108)
	October 2021.pdf (p.109-118)
	SMG Financial Statement.October 2021.pdf (p.119-134)

